
Key consolidated figures
IFRS
(International Financial
Reporting Standards)

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Profit (in € millions)

Recurring profit 24.70 22.89

Profit from current and non-current assets (capital gains) (1.80) (4.71)

Share of profit from associated companies 4.22 11.29

Share of profit from non-current assets available for sale
and discontinued operations 1.48 13.84

Consolidated net profit – Company owners 28.32 43.22

Consolidated overall net profit
(including income and expenses recognised in shareholders’ equity) 51.31 32.57

Shareholders’ equity – attributable to Company owners8 864.00 832.46

Group cash position 229.09 163.61

Consolidated net assets 883.57 861.27

Key figures per share (in €)

Shareholders’ equity – attributable to Company owners
per share 36.07 34.75

Net asset per share 36.88 35.95

Net profit per share – attributable to Company owners 1.18 1.80

Overall net profit per share – attributable to Company owners
(including variations in portfolio value) 2.14 1.36
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Since 1992, Luxempart’s share price has shown a
compound annual growth rate of 11% (12% for its net
asset value – NAV).

At end March 2013, the Company's share price showed
a discount of approximately 33% in relation to its NAV.
During 2012, Luxempart's NAV increased by 7.4%.

Between 1st January and 31st March 2013, the NAV
increased by 2.7% while the share price grew by 2%
over the same period.

Luxempart’s dividend has seen a compound annual growth
rate of 8.9% since 1992.

For the financial year 2012, the Board of Directors proposed

a gross dividend per share of € 0.8252, i.e. a 10% increase
on the previous financial year's dividend.

Since January 2012, Luxempart’s share performance has
been slightly below that of the Lux X index (+15% vs.
+16% respectively). The Lux X has been highly influenced
by the performance of SES (+29% weighted at 22% in
the index), Reinet (+29% weighted at 21% in the index)
and KBC (+190% weighted at 11% in the index) as well
as that of ArcelorMittal (-24% weighted at 18% in the
index). Luxempart was impacted positively by strong growth
in the share price of SES and Foyer (+23%) and negatively
by the share price evolution of RTL Group (-15% after

payment of a dividend of € 10.5 including € 5.4 in
extraordinary dividends).

Change
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% in capital
of the entity

SUPPORTIVE INVESTMENTS

SES 3.0%

RTL Group 0.8%

Atenor 10.4%

Foyer Finance 18.2%

Foyer S.A. 5.7%

SEO (ord + 1/5) 5.4%

Poweo Direct Energie 3.6%

PNE Wind 0 .5%

Pescanova 5 .8%

Mirato 15.8%

PRIVATE EQUITY

Indufin Capital Partners -
ICP Sicar 50.0%

IEE
(held for sale) 6.5%

Quip 51.0%

DS Care 45.1%

Ekkio Capital 41.0%

Thrombogenics 0.3%

IP Santé domicile nciii

O3b nciii

Octopode nciii

Private Equity funds naiii

Portfolio breakdown at 20.03.2013
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Message to shareholders

Dear shareholders,

Since June 1992, Luxempart has managed a diversified portfolio of holdings.

For around twenty years, the Company has experienced an annual internal rate of return (IRR) of more than 15% while
offering its shareholders a dividend with annual growth of 10%.

Initially strongly focused on investments in the Grand Duchy and Belgium, Luxempart is now pursuing a policy of
geographical diversification of its investments, mainly in Germany, France, and Italy.

Each time, this strategy relies on local management teams and newly established contact networks.

Luxempart thus has a team in Düsseldorf, Algebra GmbH, to manage and develop its activities on the German market.

In France, Luxempart and another French institutional shareholder had the opportunity to take over two investment
funds while establishing a partnership with the local management team.

In Italy, Luxempart has two holdings currently managed by a local team in close collaboration with Luxempart’s managers.

The main supportive investments held for the longer term remain Luxembourg companies, such as SES, Foyer, and RTL
Group.  Some of these long-term holdings have been successfully sold in recent years (Cegedel, Utopia, Paul Wurth)
and should be replaced by new long-term investments in Luxembourg or in foreign countries in which Luxempart has
extended its network.

2012 profit

The consolidated overall net profit was € 51.31 million as at 31.12.2012 (€ 2.14 per share) compared with € 32.57 million
as at 31.12.2011 (€ 1.36 per share).

In 2012, Luxempart generated a consolidated net profit of € 28.32 million. This profit includes mainly an increased
recurring profit, a gain on the sale of Paul Wurth, and a devaluation on the Pescanova position.

Dividend

The Board of Directors proposes a gross dividend of € 0.8252 (net € 0.7014) per share, up 10% compared with the
previous financial year’s dividend.
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Relevance of diversification

At mid-April 2013, Luxempart’s stock price is up 4% compared with 31 December 2012, despite the devaluation of a
large holding (Pescanova), which demonstrates the relevance of the portfolio’s extensive diversification.

Outlook

Despite good movement on the stock markets in the 2nd half of 2012 and at the beginning of financial year 2013, the
banking system is still under pressure, and the growth prospects in Europe for 2013 are weak, unlike in the emerging
countries and in the United States, where stronger growth is emerging again. This situation in Europe is pushing
Luxempart to be cautious in its investment policy.

The dividends already paid or announced by Luxempart’s main holdings are a good omen for the recurring profit of the
current financial year.

Changes in the Pescanova holding

Luxempart is helping to make Pescanova’s position fully transparent and will continue to defend its interests. Investigations
are currently underway in order to understand the significant differences reported with regard to the company’s debt
and take the necessary steps. The loss on this investment was almost fully recognised in 2012.

We would like to end this message by thanking shareholders for their continued support and extending these thanks
to all our employees for their dedicated efforts and achievements.

François Tesch Gaston Schwertzer
Managing Director Chairman
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Luxempart is an investment company listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. It manages a portfolio of listed and
non-listed holdings mainly in Luxembourg, Belgium, France, Germany, and Italy.

Luxempart undertakes its profession as a professional shareholder around two separate focuses:

• On the one hand, acquisition of supportive investments managed by a team geared towards creating long-
term value and generating recurring revenues.

Driven by the family ethos and entrepreneurial spirit of its main shareholders, Luxempart favours due diligence in
its portfolio selection and management, continuous and prudent risk management, as well as a long-term value
creation horizon.

Luxempart undertakes its profession as an investor through active involvement in the strategic choices, major
decisions and control procedures of investments, by sitting on Board meetings and by ensuring good corporate
governance practices. Continuous support is given to management teams without, however, interfering in the
day-to-day handling of business.

• On the other hand, the private equity activities entrusted to teams motivated by realising short- or medium-
term exit capital gains.

Private equity activities are led by dedicated teams of professionals based in Belgium, France, Germany, and
Luxembourg.

Since its creation, through its active management, Luxempart has successfully continued to develop its portfolio and
pursued its policy of value creation for its shareholders.

1. Operations of the period and highlights
2. Consolidated profits
3. Estimated net assets
4. Own shares
5. Significant events after the closing date of the annual accounts
6. Group financial policy
7. Research and development
8. Outlook
9. Legal notice

1. Operations of the period and highlights

The 2012 financial year was marked by the following events:

UTOPIA

Luxempart sold its 55% holding in Utopia SA to a Luxembourg consortium made up of Utopia Management and
Compagnie Luxembourgeoise de Navigation (CLdN). For 18 years, Luxempart actively participated in the Utopia group’s
international expansion. With its financial support and business expertise through its presence in the company’s decision-
making bodies and its proximity with the management, Luxempart secured its role as professional shareholder in the
group’s expansion. Luxempart was able to contribute to maintaining a body of Luxembourg shareholders alongside
the management with which it had managed to develop a relationship of trust.

Management report
on the consolidated accounts
as at 31 December 2012
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PAUL WURTH

In July 2012, Luxempart sold its 10.9% holding in Paul Wurth S.A. to the German industrial group SMS Group for € 56
million. Luxempart had been a shareholder of Paul Wurth since 1988.

This sale, which was carried out free of any guarantee, is complementary to the parallel acquisition by SMS Group of
the shares held by ArcelorMittal (48.1%). The Luxembourg shareholders SNCI, BCEE, and the State retain 41% of the
capital of Paul Wurth S.A.

PESCANOVA

In February 2012, Luxempart subscribed to a convertible bond issue by Spanish company Pescanova for € 17 million.

In July 2012, Luxempart participated in a Pescanova capital increase for around € 9 million. The holding in Pescanova’s
capital was thus increased from 5.1% to 5.8%. This capital increase was intended to strengthen the group’s own
funds and reduce its dependence on banks.

As a reminder, in July 2011, Luxempart acquired a 5.1% holding in Pescanova for approximately € 30 million. The
company covers the entire value-creation chain, from fishing and aquaculture to marketing of seafood products.

Since February 2013, Pescanova’s position has strongly and unexpectedly deteriorated (see point 5. “Significant events
after the closing date”).

INITIATIVE POUR LA SANTÉ DOMICILE (IP Santé Domicile)

Luxempart acquired a holding in the French company Initiative Pour la Santé Domicile alongside the private equity fund
ActoCapital. This € 9.4 million investment was made through a dedicated vehicle called Actoline IV.

IP Santé Domicile provides equipment to patients whose illness requires home treatment and trains them on the use of
these devices.

IP Santé Domicile engages in its activity throughout France (44 branches) with three focuses: (i) home respiratory
assistance, (ii) home drip, nutrition, and insulin therapy, and (iii) home support services.

OPERATIONS CARRIED OUT BY INDUFIN CAPITAL PARTNERS SICAR (ICP SICAR)

ICP Sicar sold its holdings in Vemedia and Traficon, generating an overall capital gain of around € 16 million (including
a 50% share for Luxempart).

ICP Sicar acquired a 40% holding in Securelink, a company active in the field of computer security integration and the
development of network solutions in Benelux.

POWEO DIRECT ENERGIE

The merger between Poweo et Direct Energie completed in July 2012 gave birth to the first French multi-energy
alternative operator with a portfolio of more than 1 million clients. The financial agreement reached with the operator
of the ERDF power system on the routing expenses strengthened the new group’s financial position through an
exceptional injection of more than € 50 million in 2012 and recurring injections by 2015. Poweo Direct Energie has
gained new momentum and is in the process of realising synergies resulting from the merger. Its evolution will depend
on the liberalisation of the French energy market.
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OTHER OPERATIONS

Luxempart sold the securities held in its stock portfolios and slightly strengthened its position in Foyer S.A. and
RTL Group.

Following all of these operations, the Luxempart group’s cash increased from € 164 million as at 31.12.2011 to € 229
million as at 31.12.2012.

2. Consolidated profits

The profits are as follows:

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Recurring profit 24,700,289 22,891,141

Profit from non-current and current assets
(capital gains / losses on investments) (1,796,057) (4,710,856)

Taxes (298,363) (13,252)

Share of profit from associates 4,221,264 11,284,792

Share of profit from non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued activities 1,476,588 13,841,332

Consolidated net profit 28,303,722 43,293,157

Company’s owner (Group share) 28,320,452 43,224,116

Holding not giving control (minority share) (16,730) 69,041

Revaluation of non-current assets
(change in unrealised capital gains or losses) 23,009,811 (10,727,382)

Consolidated overall net profit
(including changes in portfolio value) 51,313,533 32,565,775

Luxempart closed financial year 2012 with consolidated profit (Group share) of € 28.32 million versus € 43.22 million
in 2011.

The consolidated profit as at 31 December 2012 includes mainly an increased recurring profit, a gain on the sale of
Paul Wurth, and a devaluation on the Pescanova position.

The consolidated overall net profit increased from € 32.57 million at the end of 2011 to € 51.31 million at the end of
2012, i.e., 57.5% growth thanks to the good performance of our main holdings.
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2.1. Recurring profit

Recurring profit breaks down as follows:

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

• Financial profit 29,495,452 27,920,980

• Services / recovery of services 572,657 529,317

• Other operating expenses (3,008,191) (4,155,279)

• Personnel costs (2,359,629) (1,403,877)

Recurring profit 24,700,289 22,891,141

Recurring profit amounts to € 24.70 million as at 31.12.2012 (€ 22.89 million as at 31.12.2011).

Recurring profit is made up of the following items:

Financial profit mainly includes dividends from holdings in SES, Foyer Finance, Foyer, RTL Group, and Atenor and
similar income made up of bank interest.

The item Services/recovery of services includes profit shares and fees received from companies in the portfolio.

Other operating expenses, which are made up of expert fees, rental expenses, and value adjustments on tangible
fixed assets, intangible fixed assets, and current assets, and

The personnel costs of the group’s employees.

2.2. Capital gains / losses on investment

Capital gains / losses on investment break down as follows:

(Figures in  €) 2012 2011

• Gains or losses realised on disposals 47,372,994 1,225,880

• Unrealised gains or losses  (49,169,051) (5,966,736)

Capital gains on investment (1,796,057) (4,710,856)

Capital gains / losses on investment total € (1.80) million as at 31.12.2012 versus € (4.71) million as at 31.12.2011.

Capital gains / losses on investment are made up of the following items:

Realised gains and losses on disposals. In 2012, they mainly involve gains on disposals of the Utopia and Paul Wurth
holdings and, in 2011, gains on disposals of the asset portfolio.
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Unrealised gains or losses. This item includes impairments on Poweo (€ 0.26 M), DS Care (€ 2.35 M), and Pescanova
(€ 48.22 M) as well as a value adjustment write-back on an asset portfolio (€ 1.66 M). In 2011, this item included
impairments on Poweo and the asset portfolio as well as the revaluation of securities held for trading at the fair value.

2.3. Share of profit of associates

This item includes the share in the profits of the Quip Holding, DS Care, Indufin S.A., and Indufin Capital Partners Sicar
S.A. groups, as well as the fluctuation in the fair value of related companies of the subsidiary Indufin Capital Partners.

2.4. Profit from companies held for sale or discontinued

This item includes the profit from the Utopia holding, sold during financial year 2012.

3. Estimated net assets

The NAV represents the portfolio’s estimated value, plus current assets, minus liabilities towards third parties. The
portfolio’s estimated value is determined based on the share price for listed securities and, for non-listed securities,
based on a valuation by Luxempart in order to determine the market value by applying, where appropriate, discounts
for illiquidity or particular risks.

Net assets as at 31.12.2012 takes into account the devaluation of the Pescanova position (equities valued at 0 and
bonds valued at € 3.8 million). The NAV per Luxempart share is € 36.88 versus € 35.95 as at 31.12.2011.

As at 31.12.2012, the impairment of the Pescanova holding has a negative impact of € 1.41 on net assets per share.

On 20.03.2013, the NAV per Luxempart share is € 37.87 applying the same devaluation for Pescanova as used at the
end of 2012.

Net assets increased by € 0.99 per share between 31.12.2012 and 20.03.2013.

On 20 March 2013, the NAV totals € 907 million, broken down as follows:

Private Equity Funds € 10 M

Supportive Investments € 528 M

Own Shares € 26 M

Asset Portfolio € 34 M

Private Equity € 109 M

Net Cash Position € 200 M
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4. Own shares

During financial year 2012, Luxempart acquired, during off-market transactions, 127,500 own shares for a total amount
of € 2.87 million.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company holds 998,788 own shares (4.2% of capital) for an acquisition value of
€ 19.38 million.

5. Significant events after the closing date

CHANGES IN THE PESCANOVA HOLDING

Following a sudden, unexplained need for cash at the beginning of the year, putting the company’s viability into
question, Pescanova’s Board of Directors, on the initiative of representatives of Luxempart and the Damm* group,
refused to approve the 2012 accounts on 27 February 2013. As a result of this decision, Pescanova was subject to Art.
5bis of the law, which permits either restructuring the company for a period of four months or, in case of failure, filing
for bankruptcy.

On 12 March 2013, the company’s Chairman informed CNMV (the Spanish market supervisory authority) that significant
differences may exist between the debt on the company’s books and the debt actually due.

Pescanova’s listing will probably remain suspended until the company’s 2012 accounts are validated.

BDO, the company’s registered auditor for more than 10 years, has been appointed by the CNMV to perform a detailed
analysis of the company’s accounts and submit a report on Pescanova’s position by the beginning of April. An extraordinary
Board of Directors meeting will need to be convened in order to review BDO’s report and examine and validate the new
version of the 2012 accounts.

The uncertainty about the company’s financial position, the announced divergences between the actual debt and the
recognised debt which could be significant, the establishment of the procedure under Article 5bis of the Spanish
bankruptcy law setting a maximum period of four months to remedy the situation, the differences of opinion on
Pescanova’s Board of Directors about the measures to be taken, and the suspension of the stock’s listing led Luxempart
to record an impairment corresponding to a clearing of the holding and a sharp value reduction on the convertible
bonds with an impact on consolidated profit of € 48.22 million. The impact on convertible bonds was able to be
reduced by € 4 million following a disposal on 7 March 2013 for € 5 million in face value.

RTL GROUP

The Bertelsmann group has announced its intention to reduce its current holding in RTL Group from 92.3% to around
75.0%, which will allow it to have cash to finance new acquisitions while keeping a qualified majority in RTL Group
and increasing the stock’s liquidity.

In addition, RTL Group’s Board of Directors announced the payment of a dividend of € 10.50 per share (€ 5.10 of
ordinary dividend and € 5.40 of extraordinary dividend).

* important Spanish company in the brewing industry and in fuel distribution in Spain that holds 6.2% in Pescanova
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ACTO CAPITAL

Luxempart, through its venture capital investment company (SICAR) Luxempart Capital Partners, together with Five
Arrows Secondary Opportunities III, a Rothschild group fund, each acquired 41% of the venture capital mutual funds
(FCPR) Acto and Acto Capital II, held by Groupama. The remaining 18% is held by French institutionals.

The former management team of these venture capital mutual funds will continue to monitor these funds through a
new recently incorporated management company.

Luxempart will also sponsor the new funds that this management team intends to raise starting in 2013. This new fund
will fully fit into the original investment strategy deployed for more than 10 years by the team, which uses a proactive
sectoral approach.

Luxempart’s total commitment, including the sponsoring of the new fund, will be approximately € 60 million.

The Acto and Acto Capital II funds include a total of 12 investments, with a unit amount of € 5-15 million, in French
companies of the health, tourism, auditing, and energy efficiency sectors.

Luxempart has been associated with the management team since early 2012 through a co-investment in the home
health company IP Santé Domicile.

For Luxempart, this operation fits into a long-term partnership with a professional, experienced private equity team in
France and conveys the strategy for collaboration with local teams that are well established in their market.

OCTOPODE

Luxempart has acquired a minority stake in Octopode, a company active in the distribution of outdoor vacation rentals.

This investment is intended to be sold to the new fund, which will be raised by the management team of the Acto and
Acto Capital II funds.

MIRATO

Luxempart has acquired a 15.8% holding in Mirato, an Italian company active in the manufacture, production, and
distribution of cosmetics. This acquisition of a minority holding will be managed by a local team with which Luxempart
has established a partnership for the management of DS Care (operator of retirement homes in Italy).

 6. Group financial policy

In 2012, the European financial markets were characterised by recurring tensions on debts of the southern countries.
Political and technical measures were implemented in order to thwart them and keep the eurozone going, against the
backdrop of significant deterioration of growth.

Starting from fourth quarter 2011, the markets have benefited from the new political governance in Italy as well as the
effects of the ECB’s measures under the new direction of Mr Draghi. The ECB’s measures to reduce interest rates and
make medium-term financing available to banks (LTRO), initiated at the end of 2011 and repeated in early 2012,
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allowed “at risk” markets to continue in first quarter 2012 on a positive course for the sovereign risk markets, private
credit, and equity markets.

However, at the end of March 2012, the environment greatly deteriorated. Growth prospects in the developed world,
especially in Europe, were revised downward as a result of the effects of austerity but also the price of oil approaching
its 2008 highs. The political calendar (elections in Greece and France) weighed on the market, although the results
were ultimately accepted rather well. A new step in managing the European crisis was taken during the European
summit of great importance held in late June 2012. During this summit, the following points were addressed:

• The “growth” component, dear to France;

• The follow-up to the Greek plan;

• The establishment of a new plan in order to recapitalise Spanish banks in difficulty;

• The fiscal union pact, unified bank supervision, and the European Stability Mechanism (ESM).

The end of the first half of the year saw a rebound of “at risk” markets, accentuated by the ECB’s strong initiatives to
anchor the sustainability of the euro in the markets and measures implicitly validated by the German Constitutional
Court, approving the ratification of the ESM pact, the successor of the European Financial Stability Facility (EFSF). The
Outright Monetary Transactions (OMT) mechanism, which can be activated in the eurozone at the request of threatened
countries, based on negotiated conditions, finally convinced the bond markets. Over the last quarter, the result was a
widespread decrease in swap interest rates, margins on corporate bonds, including for financial issuers, and margins
on sovereign borrowings of countries of the South, with institutional players worrying more and more about insufficient
returns on their portfolio. The liberalisation of the sums pledged to Greece under conditions contributed to this
standardisation movement.

Over the year, equities experienced significant volatility, highly correlated to the levels of pressure in the eurozone. The
good performance until late March was virtually eliminated in the second half of 2012 before a very strong rebound in
third quarter 2012. The last quarter was very positive thanks to the decline in risk aversion and the decrease in interest
rates. This particularly benefited financial securities. The US market welcomed the re-election of Barack Obama as well
as the resolution, admittedly temporary, of the year-end deadline for the fiscal cliff.

The Group’s major risk is the exposure of its financial assets to market risk. The policy for managing this risk is established
and controlled by the Management Committee, the Board of Directors, and the Audit Committee.

Investments in listed companies represent 54.06% as at 31 December 2012 (2011: 53.68%) of the Group’s net assets.

The Group’s investments are mainly in companies listed on the stock exchange (Luxembourg Stock Exchange, Brussels
Stock Exchange, and Paris Stock Exchange). The table below presents the investment by asset class based on the total
financial assets.

2012 2011

Investment in listed companies 80.10% 76.93%

Investment in private equity  18.16% 21.55%

Investment in private equity funds  1.74% 1.52%

Total 100% 100%
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Management of market risk

Market risk applies to the loss in value of assets invested through the stock exchange in equity or mutual fund units.
These securities are listed on the stock exchange and are thus subject to the variations and risks inherent in the
financial markets. It is possible that at a given moment, the value of all or some of these securities will be less than the
most recently established book value. An analysis of the sensitivity of the invested assets is provided in the table below.
A range of variation of +10% to -10% was applied to the valuation as at 31 December 2012. This variant influences
the consolidated reserves and income statement. This risk variable is relevant and reasonably possible. Luxempart has
a long-term view of its holdings and therefore does not systematically withdraw from its investments based on price
volatility. Nevertheless, Luxempart S.A. monitors changes in the prices of its listed holdings on a daily basis.

(Figures in  €) -10% -5% +5% +10%

Change through profit and loss -3,582,407 -1,802,777 1,273,703 2,811,944

Change through reserves -40,721,600 -20,349,226 20,878,300 41,492,063

Management of interest rate risk

Management of interest rate risk involves hedging (fully or partially) the fluctuation of interest rates on debt with a
fixed interest rate according to its own policy adopted by the Board of Directors of each entity based on its needs.

The average duration of the placement of fixed-term deposits is 30 days, and the average rate over 2012 is 0.56%. As
at 31 December 2012, the average rate is 0.12%. The analysis below presents, at a like-for-like bank balance, the pre-
tax impacts of the decrease in interest rates on the Group’s profit.

(Figures in  €) 2012 2011

Variable of + 50 basis points 981,733 945,283

Variable of - 50 basis points -981,733 -945,283

(Figures in  €) 2012 2011

Variable in relation to the current average rate -863,948 388,564

As at 31 December 2012, with a rate of 0.12%, the interest collected would decrease by € 863.948.

Management of foreign exchange risk

The Group invests mainly in positions in the Group’s functional currency (EUR). There is no significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk.

Management of credit risk

Credit risk involves the risk that contracted third parties will not meet their commitments towards the Group during
transactions with it.
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Each holding is responsible for managing credit risk according to the specific terms most appropriate for the
situation.

Management of liquidity risk

As at 31 December 2012, Luxempart has no financial debts and has a high level of liquidity. The liquidity default risk
is low.

7. Research and development

Luxempart has no activity in the field of research and development.

8. Outlook

Luxempart’s main holdings have announced the payment of an increased dividend in relation to the previous financial
year.

Pescanova’s situation could still have an additional negative impact on the 2013 accounts of around € 4 million, in
case of a total devaluation of the residual value of the convertible bonds; the loss of around € 1 million, originating in
financial year 2012, on the disposal of a portion of the convertible bonds o n 7 March 2013 has already been incorporated
into the 2012 accounts.

Luxempart maintains the right to buy back own shares on the Luxembourg regulated market. The total number of
shares bought back per financial year should not exceed 100,000 shares.

9. Legal notice

Responsibility of the Board of Directors

The responsibility of the Board of Directors is determined by law. As such, it is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the annual accounts in accordance with the European directives and regulations. The Board considers
that it has fully complied with these obligations.

Declaration by responsible persons

In accordance with the law of 11 January 2008 relating to transparency obligations regarding information about
issuers whose securities are admitted for trading on a regulated market, we declare that to our knowledge, the IFRS
and Lux GAAP financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards, provide a true
and fair view of the assets and liabilities, financial position, and profits and losses of the Company and that the
management report faithfully presents the growth, profits, and position of the Company.
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Law of 19 December 2002

The information required by the Law of 19 December 2002 (Article 68bis), updated version of 17 December 2010, is
found in the corporate governance charter, a version of which is available on the Company’s website: www.luxempart.lu.

Information in application of the law of 19 May 2006 regarding takeover bids

Luxempart’s share capital amounts to € 59,887,710 represented by 23,955,084 fully paid-up common shares without
any designation of a nominal value. There are no other share categories or options or pre-emptive rights entitling
holders to the issuance of shares of another category that could have a dilutive effect on the number of shares issued.
The issued shares all enjoy the same rights both with regard to their right to vote at ordinary and extraordinary general
meetings and the dividend voted on by shareholders at general meetings. Note that there are no restrictions on the
transfer of securities or special control rights for certain holders of these securities. No agreement between shareholders
able to lead to restrictions on the transfer of securities or voting rights has been entered into.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Foyer Finance, a financial holding company not
listed on the stock exchange, which constitutes the largest group of companies to which the Company belongs, holds
10,434,240 shares of the Company out of a total of 23,955,084 issued shares, i.e., 43.50%.

Within Luxempart, there is a Stock Option Plan implemented for members of the Management Committee. Each year,
the Company freely decides whether there is cause to allocate option rights or not. The granting of options is subject
to a flat-rate entry taxation model. Option rights, where applicable, are allocated annually based on the length of
service and the achievement of performance objectives of each person. The option right is subject to a lock-in period
of three years and must be exercised within a period of ten years from the granting of the option right.  The Stock
Option Plan of members of the Management Committee is supplied with own shares held in the portfolio in such a
way that there is no creation of new dilutive shares for shareholders.

Members of Luxempart’s Board of Directors are appointed by the Annual General Meeting upon recommendation by
the Board and after receiving the opinion of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. They are appointed for a
maximum term of six years. Normally, the term of office of Luxempart’s directors is three years, and the expiry dates are
spread out so that one third of the terms of office are renewed each year. Their term of office is renewable. In principle,
the term of office as director ends at the close of the Annual General Meeting that chooses the replacement.

The Annual General Meeting may revoke the directors at any time.

In the event that the office of a director is vacant, the Board of Directors may choose a replacement in compliance with
the rules governing the appointment of directors. At the next Annual General Meeting, the shareholders decide on the
final appointment, in principle for the remaining period of the term of office of the replaced director.

The Board of Directors, a body responsible for Luxempart’s management, has decision-making powers on all matters
and can undertake all activities necessary or useful for meeting the company’s corporate purpose, with the exception
of powers that the law or the Articles of Association grant expressly to the Annual General Meeting. The responsibility
of this body is to ensure the long-term success of the company and its business activities, in the interest of the
shareholders and by considering the interests of other stakeholders of the community in which the Company operates.
The primary responsibility of the Board of Directors lies in the strategic management of the Company and the control
over its business activities.
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An Extraordinary General Meeting must be convened to deliberate on any modification of the bylaws as well as any
increase or decrease in the share capital, unless the shareholders previously authorised the Board to increase the share
capital under specific conditions, which is the case for Luxempart, whose authorised capital amounts to € 90,000,000.
Following a decision taken by the Extraordinary General Meeting of 30 April 2012, the Board of Directors is authorised
to carry out, under the conditions stipulated by article 5 of the bylaws, one or more capital increases in order to bring
it up to € 90,000,000; this authorisation expires on 30 April 2017.

Also note that there is no agreement to which Luxempart would be party that would be substantially amended or even
terminated in the event that a takeover bid is implemented. Similarly, no agreement has been entered into between
the Company and the members of its Board of Directors or its personnel providing for compensation in case of
resignation, dismissal without valid reason, or if their employment was terminated because of a takeover bid.

Alain HUBERTY François TESCH
Director Managing Director

Leudelange, 28 March 2013
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Corporate governance

INTRODUCTION

The Luxempart Corporate Governance Charter, which takes due consideration of the Corporate Governance Code as
published by the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, is based on the following areas:

• Structure and organisation of Luxempart describing the arrangement of the various investment sectors and the
organisation of the Company’s management

• The description of Luxempart’s share capital, the shareholding structure, and the liquidity of shares

• The role and operation of the Annual General Meeting and the Shareholder Information Policy

• The role, composition, chairmanship, and operation of the Board of Directors

• The delegation of daily management

• The Specialist Committees comprising the Board of Directors, in particular the Audit Committee and the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, their respective roles, composition, and operation

• The role and composition of the Management Committee, the responsibilities of the Managing Director and other
members of the Management Committee

• External auditing of Luxempart

The charter additionally includes the following:

• A definition of the criteria for Director independence

• A definition of the competency profile of the Board of Directors

• Prevention measures for insider trading or stock market manipulation

• The remuneration policy for Directors and members of the Management Committee

On 30 April 2007, the Company undertook a complete rewriting of its Articles of Association in order to include the
principles of corporate governance. The Articles of Association were amended again later.

The coordinated Articles of Association are available at www.luxempart.lu.

On 30 April 2012, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee proposed to the Annual General Meeting the
appointment of a third independent director who fulfils all requirements in terms of independence as outlined in the
Ten Principles of Corporate Governance of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Since then, Luxempart’s Board of Directors
has been made up of 10 members.
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SHAREHOLDING

Luxempart’s shareholding is constituted as follows:

Holding in share capital (as %) as at 31.12.2012

Foyer Finance 43.50

BIL 9.95

Groupe Sofina 5.25

Own shares 4.20

Public and Institutional 37.10

TOTAL 100.00

In March 2007, Luxempart signed a liquidity agreement with Banque Degroof in order to promote the liquidity of
Luxempart’s shares.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Role

The Board of Directors is the body responsible for the management of Luxempart.

The Board of Directors is a collegial body holding decision-making powers on all matters and can undertake all activities
necessary or useful for meeting the company’s corporate purpose, with the exception of powers that the law or the
Articles of Association grant expressly to the Annual General Meeting. The responsibility of this body is to ensure the
sustainable development of the company and its business activities, in the best interest of all shareholders and by
considering the interests of other stakeholders, such as creditors, employees and the community in which the company
operates in general.

The primary responsibility of the Board of Directors lies in the strategic management of the Company and the control
over its business activities.

Composition

Luxempart is administered by a Board of Directors (a one-tier management structure) made up of 10 members who are
physical persons. The directors are appointed by the Annual General Meeting upon recommendation by the Board of
Directors after receiving the opinion of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The majority of members are non-executive directors. The Board of Directors includes at least two independent directors.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors is chosen from among the non-executive members of the Board of Directors.
The current Chairman of the Board of Directors, Gaston Schwertzer, does not hold any executive function at Luxempart.
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The mandates of certain directors are renewed during the Annual General Meeting in 2013.

As at 31 December 2012, the Board of Directors of Luxempart was composed of 10 members:

• 3 executive directors;

• 7 non-executive directors, including 3 independent directors.

Gaston Schwertzer

Chairman of the Board of Directors and non-executive director

• Industrialist

• Born in 1932

Gaston Schwertzer has held a Doctorate in Law since 1955 (Luxembourg Bar - three years).

Gaston Schwertzer worked independently in the gas industry for 34 years. For a period of 20 years, he was Chairman
of the Luxembourg section of the Association Professionnelle des Gaz de Pétrole and Vice-Chairman of the Belgian-
Luxembourg “Februpo” association. He established and directed the companies Probutan-Gas, Compagnie Générale
des Gaz Liquéfiés, the Presta-Gaz gas canister packaging factory (Kleinbettingen), the maritime gas supply and storage
centre via the Willebroek Canal in Grimbergen, Belgium, and the drumming plant at Ans/Liege, Belgium.

In conjunction with his industrial business activities, Gaston Schwertzer established and managed several real estate
complexes in Luxembourg.

Gaston Schwertzer was Vice-Chairman of Cegedel and director of SES for 12 years, director of CLT, Audiofina, which
subsequently became the RTL Group, and director of Paul Wurth. He is Chairman of the Sichel and Presta-Gaz Groups.

Gaston Schwertzer co-founded BIL Participations in 1988, which became Luxempart in 1992, occupying the role of
Managing Director between 1993 and 2002, and is currently Chairman of the Board of Directors. He was also a
director of the listed companies Société Electrique de l’Our (SEO), Audiolux, and Dexia Group. Gaston Schwertzer is
honorary Vice-Chairman of BIL and was on the bank’s Board for 27 years. He is a director of Foyer Finance and, until
2012, the Luxembourg structures of the Wendel Group. Outside of his industrial activities, he was elected Director of
the Fondation Indépendance which promotes arts and culture.

Frank Wagener

Non-Executive Director and Vice-Chairman

• Chairman of the Board of Directors of Banque Internationale à Luxembourg (BIL)

• Born in 1952

Frank Wagener has been Chairman of the Board of Directors of Banque Internationale à Luxembourg (BIL) since 2011.
After university studies in law in Liège, he began his career at the bank in 1978 and became a member of the Management
Committee in 1993 and Managing Director in 2006.

In addition, he is Chairman of the Board of Directors of the following companies:

• Luxembourg Stock Exchange,
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• Fondation François Elisabeth (consortium of clinics and hospitals),

• Yapital S.A.

He is Vice-Chairman of the Chamber of Commerce and Luxempart as well as a member of the Board of Directors of
Clearstream, Saint-Paul, Hunter Douglas N.V. and others.

He is an alumnus of Harvard Business School.

François Tesch

Managing Director, Executive Director and Chairman of the Management Committee

• Chief Executive Officer of Foyer S.A.

• Born in 1951

François Tesch holds a first degree in Economic Science as well as an MBA from INSEAD.

After working as a financial analyst at W.R. Grace & Co in New York and financial director at W.R. Grace & Co in Paris,
François Tesch took up the position of Secretary General with the Foyer Insurance Group in 1983. Since 1985, he has
held the position of Director General (now Chief Executive Officer).

François Tesch is a Board member of the following listed companies: Foyer S.A., SES, Atenor Group and Pescanova
Grupo.

Ernst Wilhelm Contzen

Independent Non-Executive Director

• Managing Director of Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A.

• Born in 1948

Ernst Wilhelm Contzen holds a degree in law.

He began his career at Deutsche Bank AG in 1978. Within the Deutsche Bank Group, he has held various positions in
Münster, Paris, Göttingen, Brussels, Bremen and Frankfurt.

On 1 January 1998, he became a member of the Board of Directors of Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A. and became
Managing Director on 1 July 1998. He held the position of Managing Director and Country Head of Deutsche Bank
Luxembourg S.A.

On 30 April 2010, he became Chairman of the Luxembourg Bankers’ Association, the ABBL.

Michèle Detaille

Independent Non-Executive Director

Company director (ALIPA Group)

• Born in 1957

Holds a degree in political science.
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She began her career as a political adviser to the chairman of the Liberal Party. In 1983, she was the Belgium’s youngest
magistrate before sitting as deputy from 1985 to 1987.

In 1988, she moved to the private sector and became Commercial Director of Accor Services for Benelux. Starting from
1996, with a partner, she took over various SMEs in Luxembourg, Belgium, and France to establish a small group active
in industrial lifting and packaging.

In 2005, she was the first woman elected director of the Fedil (Luxembourg Business Federation). The same year, she
became a member of the Board of Directors of Université Catholique de Louvain.

Since 2009, she has been a Regent of the National Bank of Belgium, where she served as Non-Voting Member from
2005 to 2009.

Pierre Drion

Independent Non-Executive Director

• Born in 1942

At the age of 30, Pierre Drion became manager of Petercam and, during its establishment as a public company, went
on to become Managing Director.  To date, he continues to advise S.A. Petercam.

He is also Chairman of Fondation ULB (Belgium public-law institution intended to fund research within Université Libre
de Bruxelles).

André Elvinger

Non-Executive Director

• Lawyer

• Born in 1929

André Elvinger has been a lawyer on the Luxembourg Bar since 1953 and held the position of President of the Bar in
1986 and 1987. He is a partner in the firm of Elvinger, Hoss & Prussen.

He is Chairman of the Board of Directors of Foyer Finance.

André Elvinger is a member of the Luxembourg Haut Comité de la Place Financière. He is honorary Chairman of the
Association Luxembourgeoise d’Etudes Fiscales and of the Luxembourg branch of the International Fiscal Association.

François Gillet

Non-Executive Director

• Company director

• Born in 1960

François Gillet is an IAG Management and Commercial Engineer.

He joined the Union Minière in 1984 where he was assistant to the Financial Director, responsible for the financial
aspects relating to acquisitions, strategic planning and particular projects.
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In 1988, he joined the Belgian financial holding company Sofina where he is currently member of the Executive
Committee and Chief Investment Officer and, in this respect, is involved in the Group’s global management.

As a Director, he is responsible for monitoring a number of investment projects including, for example, the listed
companies Colruyt, Deceuninck, Exmar and Luxempart.

In addition to his training at IAG, during which he took part in the international exchange programme with the
University of Western Ontario (Canada), he completed the Cepac (ULB) programme and the Advanced Management
Program (INSEAD) as well as a fiscal training programme at the Ecole de Commerce de Saint-Louis.

Alain Huberty

Executive Director and member of the Management Committee

• Born in 1967

Alain Huberty holds a Master’s degree in Business Law from the Aix-en-Provence Faculty of Law and is also a graduate
of the London School of Economics (LLM). Alain Huberty also completed a training programme at INSEAD.

Prior to joining Luxempart, he was registered with the Luxembourg Bar as a Barrister and subsequently worked in the
legal departments of two major Luxembourg companies.

Alain Huberty is responsible for various Group holdings as well as private equity operations undertaken directly by
Luxempart.

Jo Santino

Executive Director and member of the Management Committee

• Born in 1957

Jo Santino received a degree in business administration from the University of Liege. He began his career at Arthur
Andersen and has worked in Brussels, Milan, and Luxembourg as an audit manager and auditor.

He joined the Cobepa group in 1987 and, in 1994, became Managing Director of Mosane, a listed company and
subsidiary of Cobepa. Jo Santino was also a member of the Cobepa Managing Committee. In 2001, he formed the
company Indufin, an investment company subsidiary of Luxempart specialising in development capital and buyouts. Jo
Santino is currently a Director and member of Luxempart’s Management Committee. He is responsible for private
equity activities.

In addition, Jo Santino is Director of the Union Wallonne des Entreprises.

2013 Proposal

The terms of office of directors François Tesch, François Gillet, and Alain Huberty end in 2013. It is proposed during the
General Meeting of 29 April 2013 to:

• extend their term of office for three years until the Ordinary General Meeting to be held in 2016
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Matters for deliberation

The main matters for discussion and/or deliberation by the Board of Directors in 2012 were as follows:

• Review of annual accounts and consolidated annual accounts for the 2011 financial year, in addition to the 2012
half-yearly report, and approval of corresponding press releases

• Preparation for the Annual and Extraordinary General Meeting held on 30 April 2012

• Review of the conclusions and recommendations outlined by the Specialist Committees

• Portfolio valuation

• Decisions relating to investment and withdrawal of investments

• Strategic consideration of the direction of Luxempart’s investment policy

• Private equity development strategy

• Follow-up on the Pescanova matter

• Sponsorship of the ACTO team (now EKKIO) and takeover of the ACTO CAPITAL and ACTO CAPITAL II portfolios
together with other shareholders

• 2013 budget

• Cash investments

• Update of the governance charter and establishment of a Compliance Officer

Frequency of meetings and participation

The Board met seven times during the past financial year. In accordance with article 16 of the bylaws, decisions were
unanimously expressed in writing in place of a meeting.

The average attendance rate of Directors at Board of Directors meetings for the previous financial year was 89%.

Remuneration

• In 2012, Directors were remunerated for their duties as follows:

• With an annual gross base compensation, where appropriate on a pro rata basis

• The total amount of annual gross base compensation allocated to all Directors amounted to € 300,000

• By attendance fees, paid for each meeting attended by a Director

• The total amount of attendance fees allocated to all Directors amounted to € 69,000
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In particular areas, the Board of Directors may be assisted, on a consulting basis, by Specialist Committees which it
establishes and determines their role, responsibilities, composition, and operation.

The competencies of such Committees extend to all companies within the umbrella of the Luxempart Group.

· AUDIT COMMITTEE

Role

The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors of Luxempart, in addition to the Boards of Directors of the other
companies within the umbrella of the Luxempart S.A. Group, in their duties of supervising financial reporting procedures,
internal and external auditing procedures, and internal control procedures.

Composition

Mr Ernst Wilhelm Contzen, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Frank Wagener, Non-Executive Director

Mr François Gillet, Non-Executive Director

The Secretariat of the Committee is assumed by Mrs Pascale Finck, Secretary of the Luxempart Board of Directors.

Activity report

Matters for deliberation

• Review of the annual results for 2011 and consolidated half-yearly results for 2012, notes to the accounts, and the
corresponding management reports

• Review of draft press releases

• Internal auditing programme

• Portfolio valuation

• External review of the accounts

• Discussion on the IFRS accounting treatment following events after the reporting period

• Monitoring of 2011 internal audit recommendations

• 2013 budget

Frequency of meetings and participation

The Audit Committee met on six occasions in 2012.
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Remuneration

Members of the Audit Committee are entitled to receive an attendance fee for each Committee meeting attended.

The total gross amount of attendance fees allocated in 2012 to all members of the Audit Committee amounted to
€ 31,500.

· NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Role

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee assists the Board of Directors in all matters pertaining to the appointment
(or removal) of Directors and members of the Management Committee.

Composition

Mr André Elvinger, Committee Chairman, Non-Executive Director

Mr Frank Wagener, Non-Executive Director

Mr Pierre Drion, Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr François Tesch, Executive Director*

Gaston Schwertzer, Chairman of the Board of Directors of Luxempart *

The Secretariat of the Committee is assumed by Mr Benoît Dourte, Human Resources Manager of the Foyer Group.

Activity report

Matters for deliberation

• Review of Management Committee member salaries

• Setting bonuses for Management Committee members for 2012

• Assessment of the Board of Directors and its committees

• Proposal for the allocation of stock options to Management Committee members within the framework of the
Stock Option Plan

Frequency of meetings and participation

During the 2012 financial year, the Committee met on two occasions.

Remuneration

The total gross amount of attendance fees allocated in 2012 to all non-executive members of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee amounted to € 8,000.

* Mr F. Tesch and Mr G. Schwertzer are members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee only for matters relating to the
appointment or removal of Directors or members of the Management Committee.
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· MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The role of the Management Committee is to ensure:

• The daily management of Luxempart and its subsidiary companies

• Implementation and monitoring of the strategy set by the Board of Directors

• Important decisions relating to the monitoring of holdings

• The study of investment and withdrawal of investment projects

• Any decision relating to investment and withdrawal of investments up to € 15,000,000

• Proposal to the Board of Directors of investments and withdrawals of investments beyond € 15,000,000

• Decision beyond € 15,000,000 with prior approval of the Chairman, in accordance with Luxempart’s procedures
in case of an emergency

The Board of Directors has delegated the daily management of Luxempart as well as Company representation for this
management to a Managing Director.

The Managing Director is assisted in his duties by a Management Committee.

Composition

The Management Committee is currently composed as follows:

Mr François Tesch, Managing Director, Chairman of the Management Committee

Mr Jo Santino, Member of the Management Committee

Mr Alain Huberty, Member of the Management Committee

Mr Jacquot Schwertzer, Member of the Management Committee

Activity report

Matters for deliberation

During the 2012 financial year, the Management Committee granted particular attention to the following issues:

• Regular monitoring of portfolio companies

• Analysing investment and withdrawal of investment opportunities

• 2013 budget

• Preparing financial tables and reports

• Optimal cash flow management

• Preparing press releases and Management statements
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• Discussing Luxempart Group strategy

• Preparing for meetings of the Group’s Board of Directors

• Preparing for General Meetings of Group companies

• Communicating with the control bodies

Frequency of meetings

The Management Committee meets at least once fortnightly.

Remuneration

The overall annual gross remuneration paid to Management Committee members for 2012 amounted to € 1,969,178,
including € 983,550 in variable remuneration. Some Management Committee members also receive a supplementary
pension plan which includes a retirement, death and disability guarantee. The premium paid for this plan in 2012
was € 54,167.

LUXEMPART SHARE TRANSACTIONS

A statement concerning Luxempart share transactions undertaken by parties with executive responsibilities within the
Luxempart Group and by parties with regular or occasional access to privileged information must be published on the
Luxempart website.

Thirty statements were published for Luxempart in 2012 for the purchase of 42,997 shares.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

Description of the main characteristics of the internal control and risk management systems as part of the financial
reporting process:

The Board of Directors monitors the existence and proper operation of internal control. With regard to Luxempart’s
size, no independent internal audit function is currently established within the company. The Audit Committee assesses
the need to use one-off assignments. These assignments are entrusted to a service provider.

Control environment

Luxempart is an investment company listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, managing a portfolio of listed and
non-listed holdings since 1988, particularly in Luxembourg, Belgium, France, Germany, and Italy. Each holding is
managed then sold in order to increase the Company’s wealth, thus creating value for its shareholders.
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In working as a professional shareholder, Luxempart has three distinct focuses:

• Supportive Investments: Luxempart favours due diligence in its portfolio selection and management, continuous
and prudent risk management, as well as a long-term value creation horizon. Luxempart acquires minority holdings
in most cases. Luxempart undertakes its profession as an investor through active involvement in the strategic
choices, major decisions, and control procedures of investments, by sitting, to the extent possible, on Board meetings
and by ensuring good corporate governance practices. Continuous support is given to management teams without,
however, interfering in the day-to-day handling of business.

• Private Equity: Luxempart invests in companies with high potential in which it uses financial leverage or not.
Investments in this segment are often accompanied by acquisition of a majority holding. Where appropriate,
Luxempart wishes to control its exit horizon. The amounts invested by company are less than those dedicated to
supportive investments. The investment horizon is generally short or medium term.

• Private Equity funds: Luxempart has invested in this asset class in order to diversify its long-term investments while
seeking an appropriate return for its shareholders. These private equity investments also make it possible to group
together certain investments.

The Board of Directors has entrusted the everyday management to a Management Committee.

Risk management

A semi-annual assessment of the main risks is performed by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors.

Market risk

Market risk applies to the loss in value of assets invested on the stock exchange in equity or mutual fund units. These
securities are listed on the stock exchange and are thus subject to the variations and risks inherent in the financial
markets. It is possible that at a given moment, the value of all or some of these securities will be less than the most
recently established book value. A sensitivity analysis of the invested assets is incorporated into note 26 of the financial
statements.

Interest rate risk

Management of interest rate risk involves hedging (fully or partially) the fluctuation of interest rates on debt with a
fixed interest rate according to its own policy adopted by the Board of Directors of each entity based on its needs.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group invests mainly in positions in the Group’s functional currency (€). There is no significant exposure to foreign
exchange risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk involves the risk that contracted third parties will not meet their commitments towards the Group during
transactions with it.

Each holding is responsible for managing credit risk according to the specific terms most appropriate for the situation.
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Liquidity risk

Luxempart has no financial debts and has a high level of liquidity. The liquidity default risk is low.

Risk related to accounting and preparation of financial statements

Luxempart has an accounting department that processes the accounting information received. The department works
in such a way that if a person is absent, continuity of tasks is ensured. The specific process of the control and encoding
of accounting documents is explained in an internal accounting procedure.

Role of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors in preparing financial information and preventing risks

Luxempart has an Audit Committee that reviews the financial information, consolidation process, and valuation of
Luxempart’s assets. The Audit Committee also examines the internal control system in relation to finances, accounting,
legal matters, and compliance. The Committee also supervises the financial reporting process.

In this context, the Audit Committee ensures:

• The independence of its members

• The prior approval of the selection and remuneration of auditors

• The obtaining of a statement of independence of the auditor once per year

• Proper communication between the auditor and the accounting department as well as the Company’s management

• Performance of ad hoc internal audit tasks

• Proper preparation of financial information

• Review and validation of financial information by the Company’s management

• Recommendations to the Board of Directors in the following areas:

• Closing of the accounts, management reports, and press releases containing financial information

• Identification of main risks, their prevention, and establishment of related processes within the entire Company

• Adoption of accounting procedures

• Adoption of rules to prevent insider trading and market manipulation

During each Board of Directors meeting, the chairman of the Audit Committee reports on his or her work, makes
concrete recommendations to the Board of Directors on the aforementioned points, and ensures their implementation.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial information on the annual and semi-annual accounts.
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Risk related to non-compliance with regulations

Luxempart is mindful of keeping informed of the regulations as well as changes and respect of the laws and regulations.
The handling of special operations is the subject of a special analysis, particularly with the consultation of the auditor
or other specialised persons. All risks are reviewed on a semi-annual basis by the Management Committee, the Audit
Committee, and the Board of Directors.

Risk related to information and communication

Luxempart has a stand-alone IT system with daily back-up of its data.

The publication of financial information is done according to the legal publication system followed and established by
Luxempart’s management. The published periodic information is reviewed by the Management Committee and the
Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.
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Activities

SES (Paris Euronext and Luxembourg Stock Exchange: SESG) is a global satellite operator with a fleet of 52 geostationary
satellites. The company provides satellite communication services to television broadcasts, content and Internet service
providers, fixed and mobile network operators, as well as companies and government organisations around the world.
SES has holdings in Ciel in Canada and QuetzSat in Mexico as well as a strategic holding in the O3b Networks satellite
infrastructure.

Key figures and highlights of the financial year

SES generated revenue of € 1,828 million in 2012, a 5.5% increase compared with the previous financial year.

www.ses.com

Holding: 3%

Millions of € 2012 2011 ∆xx

Revenue 1,828 1,733 5.5%

EBITDA 1,347 1,275 5.6%

Net profit, group share 648 618 5,0%

€ 2012 2011 ∆xx

Gross dividend per share 0.97 0.88 10.2%

Market price per share 21.65 18.53 16.8%
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Orders on its books grew by 7.1% to € 7.5 billion as at 31 December 2012.

From an operational point of view, 2012 was characterised by the final shutdown of analogue transmissions in Germany,
the negative impact of which on the revenue reached € 108 million. The order book’s robustness largely offset this
negative impact and even allowed revenue to grow.

SES carried out three successful launches in 2012.

Outlook

SES plans to launch four satellites in 2013, which will add more than 100 additional repeaters, particularly in strong
growth markets.

SES is maintaining its growth forecasts for revenue and EBIDTA of 4.5% over three years.

SES is also counting on the success of two launches as well as the subsequent commissioning of the constellation of
satellites of O3b Networks, an initiative from which SES expects substantial value creation in the coming years.
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Activities

Foyer Finance is a holding company that holds around 80% of Foyer S.A. and approximately 44% of Luxempart.

In 2012, Foyer Finance proposed a dividend of € 41.40 gross/share (€ 36.40 ordinary dividend and € 5.00 anniversary
dividend), representing a 25.5% increase on the previous financial year’s ordinary dividend.

Foyer S.A. is listed on the Luxembourg and Brussels stock exchanges and operates in the insurance and asset
management sectors.

Key figures and highlights of the financial year

www.foyer.lu

Holding in Foyer Finance : 18.2%
Holding in Foyer S.A. : 5.7%

Foyer S.A.

Millions of € 2012 2011 ∆xx

Revenues (gross written premiums) 431.07 410.86 4.9%

Non-Life 307.36 284.14 8.2%

Life 123.71 126.72 -2.4%

Life investment contracts 716.36 286.90 149.7%

Consolidated net profit 61.45 62.20 -1.2%

Non-Life Insurance 44.39 52.36 -15.2%

Life Insurance 13.33 8.20 62.5%

Wealth management 3.73 1.64 127.4%

€ 2012 2011 ∆xx

Gross dividend per share 2.15 1.59 35.6%

Market price per share 46.50 43.01 8.1%
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In 2012, the Group’s insurance revenue was up 4.9%.

Life investment contracts sold by way of free provision of services experienced strong growth in its revenue (+149.7%).

Financial year 2012 was also marked by good development in our wealth management activities under the CapitalatWork
Foyer Group brand. This good momentum is explained mainly by favourable changes on the stock markets in the
second half of 2012 and a reinforcement of the sales teams.

Outlook

The Group maintains its growth rate forecasts at a level close to that of previous years (4% to 5%).

Foyer S.A. believes that Life insurance products sold by way of free provision of services will continue to develop
because of a greater geographical diversification of sales and that the wealth management activity should also develop
favourably thanks to a greater commercial dynamic and a stronger administrative organisation.

However, the development of Foyer Group results will depend on the technical hazards inherent in the insurance
sector as well as stock market fluctuations.
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Activities

Atenor Group is a real estate development company listed on NYSE Euronext Brussels. Its role is to provide, via its urban
and architectural approach, appropriate responses to new requirements imposed by developments in urban and
professional living. Within this framework, the Atenor Group invests in large-scale real estate projects fulfilling strict
criteria in terms of location, economic efficiency and respect for the environment.

Key figures and highlights of the financial year

The € 45.45 million in revenue comes mainly from sales related to the UP-site project, namely the sale of three office
blocks and 83 apartments.

Operating profit amounts to € 8.75 million. It is mainly influenced, just like revenue, by the sale of three office blocks
and 83 apartments recorded in proportion to the progress of the work. The rents collected by the City Docks project in
Anderlecht also contributed to operating profit.

www.atenor.be

Holding in Foyer Finance: 10.4%

Millions of € 2012 2011 ∆xx

Consolidated shareholders’ equity 98.70 97.52 1.2%

Revenue 45.45 36.45  26.0%

Consolidated net profit, group share 9.50 11.32 -16.1%

€ 2012 2011 ∆xx

Gross dividend per share 2.00 2.00 0.0%

Market price per share 32.00 24.00 33.0%
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Net financial profit totals € -3.12 million and mainly includes financial expenses related to the issuance of bond loans.

The group’s net financial debt is € 131.85 million. It is made up of € 198.39 million in long-term debt (including two
bond loans) and a net cash position of € 66.54 million.

Outlook

In 2012, Atenor was given the stability and financial resources necessary to implement its diversified portfolio particularly
through the successful issue of a € 60 million bond loan.

The very specific niches in which Atenor is active still depend on complex urban development procedures so that the
scheduled timelines for completion of the projects are likely to change.

In addition, the real estate market, both residential and office, is closely tied to economic conditions.
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Activities

RTL Group is the European leader in the audiovisual broadcasting sector and has holdings in 53 television channels and
in 28 radio stations spread across a total of 10 countries. RTL Group is also highly active in the production sector
through its subsidiary FremantleMedia, which is responsible for more than 9,000 hours of programming per year.

Key figures and highlights of the financial year

The 4.0% increase in revenues, which went from € 5.8 billion in 2011 to € 6.0 billion in 2012, is mainly due to an
increase in revenue coming from activities in Germany (Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland) and FremantleMedia.

The stronger advertising market in Germany offset the decrease in France, the Netherlands, Belgium, Spain, Hungary,
and Croatia.

44% of revenue comes from content production, the sale of rights, teleshopping, and e-commerce.

The 13.2% decrease in net profit is mainly due to a € 72 million impairment of assets on the holding in the Spanish
company Grupo Antena 3.

Outlook

With regard to the operational outlook, the group emphasises that economic conditions remain difficult, just like
market conditions at the local level, and that visibility remains limited.

The majority shareholder Bertelsmann announced its intention to reduce its holding in the capital of RTL Group from
92.5% to 75.0%, thus increasing the stock’s liquidity.

www.rtl-group.com

Holding: 0.8%

Millions of € 2012 2011 ∆xx

Revenue 5,998.00 5,765.00 4.00%

EBITA 1,078.00 1,134.00 -4.90%

Net profit 690.00 795.00 -13.20%

€ 2012 2011 ∆xx

Gross dividend per share 10.50 5.10 106.00%

Market price per share 74.95 75.46 -0.68%
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Activities

Since July 2012, Poweo and Direct Energie have formed a single company that has become France’s leading alternative
operator in electricity and natural gas with more than one million customers. The group covers all business lines of the
energy chain, from production to distribution of electricity and gas.

The common brand Direct Energie holds a leading role in the process of opening up the energy market to competition.

Key figures and highlights of the financial year

2012 was marked by the merger between Poweo and Direct Energie. The new entity has a management team with
extensive experience in the energy sector and a strong, mainly French, body of shareholders supporting its industrial
development.

The transition to a positive net profit is due to accounting entries related to the merger.

Outlook

Poweo Direct Energie has reached a size that allows it to secure its profitability and become an essential player in
opening up the energy market. With this step out of the way, the group has set a goal of continuing its profitable,
gradual growth. In order to achieve this, it will continue to optimise its supply costs and streamline its structure and
management expenses.

www.direct-energie.com

Holding: 3.6%
(4.24% excluding own shares)

Millions of € 2012 2011x

Revenue 590.0

EBITDA 25.9

EBIT -4.9

Net profit 4.5

Equity 20.4

comparable figures
not available as a result
of the merger in 2012



42 Luxempart S.A.  Annual Report 2012

Activities

PNE Wind is a German listed company active in the development, installation and maintenance of onshore and offshore
wind farms. The Group has undertaken numerous projects in Germany and also has projects currently under development
in several foreign countries, including the UK. In addition, the company has high value potential in the development of
major wind farm projects in the North Sea, including one large-scale project that was just finalised.

Luxempart’s holding is primarily in the form of convertible bonds giving the right to approximately 15% of the capital
before the end of 2014 and generating interest of 6.5%.

Key figures

The 2012 profit was positively influenced by the sale of the offshore project ‘Gode Wind’.

Outlook

PNE Wind is well placed in the accelerated expansion of renewable energies, notably through offshore wind farm
projects. The company has reinforced its order book in the medium term through collaboration with the British authorities
on the development of a large dedicated wind farm site. The profit outlook announced by the Group for 2014 to 2015
amounts to between € 60 million and € 72 million in cumulative EBIT. The outlook depends to a very large extent on
the sale of offshore projects, one of which was just sold in 2012 with an impact on revenue until 2015 through
milestone payments.

www.pnewind.com

Holding: principally in convertible bonds
exercisable at the end of 2014 giving the
right to approximately 15% of the capital

Millions of € 2012 2011 ∆xx

Revenues 84.4 48.64 74%

EBITDA 25.7 5.00 403%

EBIT 20.4 0.07 na

Net profit, Group share 15.3 -5.15 na

Equity 86.6 74.70 16%
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Activities

Pescanova is a Spanish company listed on the Madrid Stock Exchange, active in the field of non-consumptive use of
marine resources. Since it was founded in 1960, Pescanova has developed greatly, becoming a dynamic group with
strong growth and a vertically integrated player in the maritime industry. The company operates with three focuses:
wild fishery, aquaculture, and packaging of its products. It employs 10,000 people throughout the world.

Key figures and highlights of the financial year

The figures for 2012 were not approved by the Board of Directors convened in February 2013. The group’s financial
position, which posted a profit of € 50 million and own funds of around € 500 million in 2011, deteriorated suddenly
and without explanation. At first, the company requested a period of four months to clear up and possibly rectify the
situation. Differences between the booked debt and the actual debt likely to be significant were later reported.
Consequently, a majority of the Board of Directors decided to request reorganisation under the court’s supervision on
9 April 2013.

Outlook

The court-supervised reorganisation procedure, which is compatible with Pescanova’s continued operations, will lead
to a restructuring in order to continue operations for the long term or a winding-up of the group. Luxempart took its
loss on this investment almost entirely in its 2012 results.

www.pescanova.com

Holding: 5.8%



44 Luxempart S.A.  Annual Report 2012

Private equity

“Private equity” refers to investments made in unlisted companies. These investments may be made at various
stages in the development of a company, both to fund creation (seed capital and start-up) and to fund growth
(capital development). “Private equity” additionally refers to majority or minority takeover operations by
management or a new generation of entrepreneurs (management buy-out or buy-in). These buy-out operations
enable the continuation of a number of family businesses faced with problems relating to company succession.

For several years, Luxempart has been focusing on developing strong expertise in the private equity sector. Today, it
relies on several dedicated teams, through Luxempart acting directly, through Indufin (active in Belgium), and a new
team established in Germany within the company Algebra.

The strategy of Luxempart and its teams breaks down as follows:

• Through direct acquisition of holdings: Luxempart makes investments in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and
in countries in which Luxempart has expanded its network to the extent that Luxempart can contribute significant
added value through its presence and develop partnerships based on trust and a common strategic vision.

• Through Indufin Capital Partners S.A. SICAR: an investment company 50% owned alongside a Belgian partner
(De Eik N.V.). Indufin is primarily active in Belgium for capital development and buy-out operations. Within the
companies in which it invests, Indufin develops a strong relationship and promotes a joint vision with its partners
focusing on creating added value.

• Through Algebra Gesellschaft für Beteiligungen mbH, where a dedicated team is currently in place in Düsseldorf
in order to search for investment opportunities in Germany with regard to possible buy-outs and longer-term
support operations within medium-sized companies.

• Through Luxempart Capital Partners, Luxempart, alongside Five Arrows Secondary Opportunities III, a fund of
the Rothschild group, has taken over in France, in equal portion, 82% of the venture capital mutual funds (FCPR)
Acto and Acto Capital II. These funds include a total of 12 investments, with a unit amount between € 5 million
and € 15 million.

This operation consists of a partnership with the team of Acto Capital, which became Ekkio Capital, and has
become a reality through Luxempart’s minority holding alongside the management team.

Ekkio Capital retains the management of the Acto funds, and the team intends to continue to implement an
original investment strategy that favours a proactive, direct approach to companies in four sectors of choice:
health, tourism and recreation, green business, and TIC (Testing, Inspection, Certification).

Investments will be made in French SMEs operating on niche and growth markets.

Ekkio Capital will soon initiate the raising of a new fund, of which Luxempart will be the sponsor.

In 2012, Luxempart established a partnership with Bravo Invest, an Italian company based in Milan, active in
private equity investment management.

Today, Bravo Invest monitors our holding in DS Care and has collaborated with Luxempart in the investment made
in Mirato, a supportive investment finalised in late March 2013. In connection with this, Luxempart acquired a
16% holding. Mirato is an Italian company active in the production and distribution of products for body care with
well-established brands in Italy. It generates revenue of around € 160 million.
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Direct private equity

Luxempart makes direct investments in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and in the countries in which Luxempart has
extended its network.  Luxempart develops a partner relationship based on trust and on a shared strategic vision.

Luxempart’s direct private equity portfolio is made up as follows:

DS Care (45.00%)

DS Care is a Luxembourg-based company established by the companies
Sinequanon, Defi Gestion and Luxempart. It operates approximately
600 beds throughout various retirement homes in Northern Italy.
The group will continue its efforts of consolidation of existing
retirement homes.

The 2012 figures are down compared with the budget, and a
reorganisation at the management level has been carried out. In
addition, our associated team in Milan, Bravo Invest, assists us in
monitoring this holding.

O3b Networks ($10 million commitment for Luxempart)

O3b (Other three billion people), whose activity is similar to the
activity of SES, and in which SES has acquired a holding in order to
be its principal shareholder and promoter, is a company in the
development phase planning to operate around twenty satellites
by 2018. The goal is to offer to telecom operators and Internet
access providers a transmission quality comparable to fibre optic
with the help of satellites positioned at a low altitude (8,000 km).
O3b will focus its activity on coverage of the geographical area
around the equator, which is insufficiently served by land cable.

O3b continues its commercial deployment and will proceed with
the launch of its first eight satellites in 2013.
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IP Santé domicile (€ 9.35 million investment)

IPS provides equipment to patients whose illness requires home
treatment and educates them in the use of these devices. IPS is a service
provider whose teams handle the implementation and monitoring of a
medical order. IPS engages in its activity throughout France (44 branches)
with three focuses: (i) home respiratory assistance, (ii) home drip,
nutrition, and insulin therapy, and (iii) home support services.

Activity over 2012 is down compared with 2011, as growth in the
number of patients did not offset the decrease in prices. Nevertheless,
profitability is up because of the efforts taken to cut external expenses.

In addition, our associated team in Paris, Ekkio Capital, assists us in
monitoring this holding.

QUIP (51.00%)

QUIP AG is a German company in the Aachen region providing interim
and outsourcing services mainly in North Rhine-Westphalia. It takes
on particular cases in manufacturing and assembly for a diverse range
of clients.

The company continues to generate profits but sharply down compared
with previous financial years. Projects to diversify its activities are
underway.

In addition, our team in Düsseldorf, Algebra, assists us in monitoring
this holding.
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Investments made through Indufin:

Indufin Capital Partners S.A. SICAR (ICP)
Luxempart holds 50% of ICP

Activities

Luxempart S.A. has a 50% holding in ICP with the remaining 50% held by de Eik N.V., a Belgian family Group.

ICP’s investment strategy includes two major approaches:

• funding internal and external growth projects in which ICP will support the management team and existing
shareholders in line with a “hands with” partnership philosophy. These represent capital development and support
operations.

• funding company acquisitions by the management team in place, by a new generation of family entrepreneurs, or
by an external management team within the framework of buy-out operations with or without leverage. These are
often majority operations which require greater involvement on the part of the Indufin teams (“hands on”). Those
operations dealing with the largest amounts of money (up to € 15 million in investment) are also evaluated on a
case-by-case basis.

ICP intends, in all instances, to be an active partner and to contribute towards creating value. The range of investments
is € 5-15 million, open to any sector.

The current geographical area of operation is primarily in Benelux. ICP has a shareholder commitment of € 100 million.

Key figures and highlights of the financial year

During financial year 2012, ICP sold its holdings in Traficon International and Vemedia Pharma and realised two substantial
capital gains. In December 2012, ICP materialised an investment in Securelink, a company active in the IT sector.

Outlook

Financial year 2013 is in line with 2012. The teams will continue to work with caution because of still uncertain
economic conditions. However, several investment projects are being considered.

www.indufin.be

Millions of € 2012 2011 ∆xx

Equity 96.49 87.09 10.79%

Portfolio 59.09 83.16 -28.94%

Total commitment 100.00 100.00 –

Luxempart commitment 50.00 50.00 –

Net profit 18.40 16.84 9.26%
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As at 31.12.2012, the portfolio of Indufin Capital Partners consists of the following:

All-Tag-Security (8.93%)

All-Tag-Security specialises in anti-theft radio-frequency
tags for the EAS sector.

Alphamin (96.30%)

Alphamin is a distributor of polymers and waxes in niche
markets at the global level.

Bartech (69.70%)

Bartech is one of the world leaders in the automatic minibar
sector.

Herbalgem (51.00%)

Herbalgem specialises in the development, production, and
marketing of bud-based food supplements and other
natural extracts.

TM
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Kyotec Group (32.00%)

Kyotec Group designs, assembles, and installs
wall facings for large-scale residential and office
building projects.

Preflexibel (66.70%)

Preflexibel is active in the prewiring of flexible
tubes.

Rowies (75.00%)

Rowies specialises in the design and distribution
of athletic shoes under the Bluehaven brand.

SecureLink (40.00%)

SecureLink is a specialised integrator in Benelux
in IT security, networking, server, storage, and
virtualisation.
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(formerly Acto Capital)

Activities

Following the secondary operation carried out by Luxempart and Rothschild/FASO on the private equity funds (investment
capital activity) held by Groupama, the team of the former “Acto Capital” created its new management company,
named Ekkio Capital, majority-owned alongside Luxempart.

Ekkio Capital retains the management of the Acto Funds (the Acto and Acto Capital II venture capital mutual funds),
and the management team, unchanged, will continue to implement the investment strategy that has been a success
for more than 10 years. It will thus continue to favour a proactive, direct approach to companies in order to carry out
primary operations, in its four sectors of choice related to health, tourism and recreation, green business, and TIC
(Testing, Inspection, Certification).

Above all, the investments will target French SMEs operating on niche markets with proven growth and offering
mainly industrial value-creation prospects, particularly through organic growth. With its sectoral expertise, the Ekkio
Capital team will also support the development of these companies through a strategy of targeted acquisitions, in
France and Europe, eventually targeting the creation of players of reference in their market.

Ekkio Capital will soon initiate the raising of a third fund, of which Luxempart will be the sponsor.

Key figures of the Acto and Acto Capital venture capital mutual funds

Millions of € FCPR Acto FCPR Acto Capital II

Year of creation Sept 2002 July 2007

Size of the fund 83.5 90.4

Called commitment
(including recall and subscription premiums) 89.8 68.9

Distributions 93.8 0.0

Amounts invested (excluding disposals) 53.1 58.6

Luxempart holding percentage 42% 42%
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As at 31.12.2012, FCPR Acto’s portfolio consists of the following:

Locabri (89.30%)

Locabri is a company active in the manufacture and rental of temporary,
modular, and removable warehouses. Its main customers are manufacturers
and mass distribution companies.

GMI (50.60%)

The GMI group has two activities: the operation of city-centre hotel-style
residences (apart’hotels) under the Appart City brand and the sale of new
apartments in residences managed by the group to individual investors.

Risk & Co (63.30%)

Risk&Co offers advising and security engineering services dedicated to
large industrial groups for securing their sites in sensitive countries.

France Thermes (94.20%)

The company owns and manages the spa facility of Bagnoles-de-l’Orne.
It offers medical treatments as well as fitness programmes.
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Ubiqus (13.90%)

Ubiqus is a leader in the field of professional meetings, offering a
complete range of value-added services (report writing, transaction,
interpreting, etc.).

As at 31.12.2012, the portfolio of FCPR Acto Capital II consists of the following:

IP Santé domicile (28.30%)

IPS is a medico-technical home care group (respiratory assistance,
drip, nutrition, insulin therapy) with 44 branches in France.

Groupe 3S (47.60%)

Groupe 3S is active in airport services in France for airlines and ADP
(Aéroports de Paris) particularly in runway activities, baggage
handling, and cleaning.

L’Inventoriste (48.40%)

The company offers physical inventory outsourcing services for
distribution brands. The group, a leader in France, is deployed in
Europe to support its customers. It currently operates in France, Spain,
Italy, and Benelux and is expanding in Poland, the Netherlands, and
Germany.



53Annual Report 2012  Luxempart S.A.

Amatsi (84.70%)

Amatsi is a service provider for pharmaceutical groups and biotech
companies in the development of medicines. Its activity involves four areas:
bioservices, control of raw materials and finished products, formulation
and manufacture of pilot batches, and logistics of clinical batches.

Elithis (34.00%)

The Elithis group is an engineering and consulting firm that recommends
and designs technical fluid installations mainly for new buildings (climate
and electrical engineering). Its activities are part of a quest to improve the
energy performance of buildings.

Acceo (38.30%)

Acceo offers inspection and control services for existing buildings and
installations. Its activity currently involves three areas: lifts, accessibility
for the disabled, and energy efficiency.
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Luxempart invested via specialist private equity funds to allow it to access types of investments which require highly
specific skills or to access larger scale operations via major European funding opportunities. The investments made in
LBO France and Apax fulfil these criteria.

Investments in NTVC I, Mangrove II and Mangrove III enable indirect early-stage investment whilst the holding in Defi
Eurocap III created the foundations for a genuinely active partnership leading to three co-investments to date.

At the end of 2012, the total drawdown in investment funds stood at € 16.5 million, and the balance remaining to be
called was € 0.8 million.

LBO France Small Caps Private Equity II (FCPR II)

LBO France Small Caps Private Equity II is an investment fund created by Masséna Finance Gestion and LBO France
Gestion, two companies undertaking complementary business activities. One raises capital from private investors; the
other ensures the selection, acquisition, management, and trading of various assets.

LBO France Small Caps Private Equity II aims at taking leveraged majority stakes (LBO) in mature companies with a
value of between € 10 million and € 100 million.

FCPR Conso Invest

FCPR Conso Invest is an investment fund created by LBO France to hold a specific investment, namely a holding in
Consolis Group, a leading manufacturer of pre-fabricated cement materials in Europe with 130 plants across 20
countries and active in both the construction and public works markets. Following difficulties encountered in this
sector, the Consolis Group was forced to restructure its debt. At the end of 2010, FCPR Conso Invest shareholders
were invited to take part in additional financing. Luxempart Capital Partners did not wish to participate in this extra
investment.

Apax France VII

Apax Partners is a historical player in private equity in France and abroad with more than 30 years of experience in
investment.

The funds managed by Apax Partners invest in companies experiencing strong growth in the following specialist
sectors: Technologies & Telecom, Distribution & Consumer Goods, Media, Health, Corporate & Financial Services.

New Tech Venture Capital Fund I (NTVC I)

NTVC I is a Luxembourg-registered investment fund managed by Mangrove Capital Partners. This fund specialises in
seed capital and the first and second rounds of financing (early stage) in the technology sector (IT, Internet, etc.).

In 2005, the sale of Skype to eBay allowed NTVC to offer shareholders amounts which considerably exceeded their
initial investments.

NTVC I is in the liquidation phase.

Mangrove II

Mangrove II was launched in September 2005. This fund invests in young European companies active in new technologies.

Investment funds
(through Luxempart Capital Partners Sicar, a 100% subsidiary of Luxempart)
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Mangrove III

Mangrove III was launched in July 2008. This fund invests in young European companies active in new technologies.

Defi Eurocap III

Defi Eurocap is an investment fund created by Defi Gestion Lausanne, a private equity company active in Switzerland,
France, Germany and Italy.

Defi Eurocap III aims to invest at least 80% of its portfolio in holdings by using leverage (LBO). Target companies are
SMEs with minimum revenue of € 10 million.

Breakdown of investment funds in
estimated value in Luxempart’s portfolio

Date of Amount invested Commitment Percentage Percentage
creation (millions of €) (millions of €) paid up held

Apax France VII March 2006 2.50 2.50 100% 0.5%

FCPR Small Caps PE II December 2005 2.50 2.50 100% 1.6%

FCPR Conso Invest February 2007 2.50 2.50 100% 1.0%

Defi Eurocap III October 2006 2.40 2.50 96% 3.6%

NTVC I June 2000 2.50 2.50 100% 4.9%

Mangrove II May 2005 2.50 2.50 100% 2.1%

Mangrove III July 2008 1.60 2.25 71% 1.3%

FCPR Small Cap PE II

Apax France VII

Defi Eurocap III

NTVC I

Mangrove II

Mangrove III
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To the shareholders of
Luxempart S.A.
12 rue Léon Laval
L-3372 Leudelange

Report on the consolidated financial statements

Following our appointment by the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of 30 April 2012, we have audited the
accompanying consolidated financial statements of Luxempart, which comprise the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2012, the consolidated cash flow statement for the financial year closed on this date, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements,
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, and for such
internal control as necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibility of the registered auditor

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing as adopted for Luxembourg by the
“Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier”. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence that we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Registered auditor’s report
as at 31 December 2012
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Luxempart
as at 31 December 2012, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
financial year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The consolidated management report, which is the responsibility of the Board of Directors, is consistent with the
consolidated financial statements.

The statement of corporate governance, as published on the Company’s website www.luxempart.lu to which the
management report refers, is the responsibility of the Board of Directors. As at the date of this report, this statement
is consistent with the consolidated accounts and includes the required disclosures in accordance with the legal provisions
relating to the statement of corporate governance.

For Deloitte Audit, registered auditing firm

Christiane Chadoeuf, registered auditor
Partner

28 March 2013
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Consolidated income statement
as at 31 December 2012

(expressed in  €) Notes 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Continued activities

Income from ordinary activities 25,180,559 24,521,773

Services / recovery of services 572,657 529,317

Dividends 6 24,607,903 23,992,456

Profit from non-current financial assets 11,12 -3,600,540 -2,196,555

Gains on disposals 47,232,814 1,855,546

Unrealised losses -50,833,354 -4,052,101

Profit from current assets 16 1,804,483 -2,514,302

Gains / (losses) on disposals 140,181 -599,666

Unrealised gains / (losses) 1,664,303 -1,914,635

Operating expenses -5,367,820 -5,559,155

Other operating expenses 4 -2,983,151 -4,136,962

Personnel costs 5 -2,359,629 -1,403,877

Depreciation of non-current assets 9, 10 -25,040 -18,316

Financial income and expenses 7 4,887,550 3,928,524

Interest and similar income 5,539,425 4,161,670

Interest and similar expenses -651,875 -233,146

Share of profit of associates 11 4,221,264 11,284,792

Profit before taxes 27,125,497 29,465,077

Tax on profit from continued activities
and other taxes 8 -298,363 -13,252

Profit for the period from continued activities 26,827,133 29,451,825

Share of profit from non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued activities 22 1,476,588 13,841,332

Net profit for the period 28,303,722 43,293,157

Attributable to the Company’s owners 28,320,452 43,224,116

Non-controlling interests -16,730 69,041

Weighted average number of shares 18 22,995,067 23,037,205

Net profit per share from continued activities -
attributable to the Company’s owners 1.17 1.28

Net profit per share -
attributable to the Company’s owners 18 1.23 1.88

The notes appearing in the appendix are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
as at 31 December 2012

(expressed in  €) Notes 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Consolidated net profit for the period 28,303,722 43,293,157

Revaluation of non-current assets 11, 12 23,009,811 -10,727,382

Consolidated overall net profit for the period 51,313,533 32,565,776

Attributable to the Company’s owners 51,330,263 32,436,743

Non-controlling interests -16,730 129,033

Weighted average number of shares 22,995,067 23,037,205

Overall net earning per share -
attributable to the Company’s owners 2.23 1.41

The notes appearing in the appendix are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2012

The notes appearing in the appendix are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Assets

(expressed in  €) Notes 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Non-current assets

Intangible fixed assets 9 5,359 9,131

Tangible fixed assets 10 119,546 45,655

Investments in associates 11 53,525,848 52,393,867

Other available-for-sale assets 12 554,079,235 568,305,064

607,605,083 620,698,931

Loans and receivables 13 5,197,634 4,769,757

Deferred tax assets 14 427 427

Total non-current assets 612,928,049 625,523,900

Current assets

Loans and receivables 15 8,307,808 3,535,887

Financial assets held for trading 16 30,764,803 26,860,797

Cash and cash equivalents 17 229,085,105 163,608,223

Total current assets 268,157,716 194,004,907

Assets classified as held for sale
and discontinued activities – 83,187,762

Total assets 881,085,765 902,716,569
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The notes appearing in the appendix are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2012

Equity and Liabilities

(expressed in  €) Notes 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Shareholders’ equity -
attributable to the Company’s owners

Capital, share premium and own shares 18 55,620,382 58,492,181

Reserves 19 780,055,053 730,740,427

Profit for the period -
attributable to the Company’s owners 28,320,452 43,224,116

Total shareholders’ equity -
attributable to Company’s owners 863,995,887 832,456,725

Non-controlling interest

Reserves -
non-controlling interest 2,528,146 20,338,238

Profit for the period -
non-controlling interest -16,730 69,041

Total non-controlling interest 2,511,416 20,407,279

Total equity 866,507,303 852,864,004

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities 14 5,703,379 5,311,193

Borrowings 20 2,460,567 –

Non-current provisions 20 4,831,778 4,875,347

Total non-current liabilities 12,995,725 10,186,540

Current liabilities

Current trade and other payables 21 1,582,737 2,496,598

Total current liabilities 1,582,737 2,496,598

Liabilities classified as held for sale
and discontinued activities – 37,169,427

Total liabilities 14,578,462 49,852,565

Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 881,085,765 902,716,569
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(expressed in  €) Notes 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Profit for the year 28,303,722 43,293,157

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of non-current assets 9, 10 25,040 18,316

Share profits of associates 11 -4,221,264 -11,284,792

Dividends from associates 11 370,155 9,166,442

Losses on disposal of
non-current and current assets 12, 16, 22 -48,849,583 -1,255,880

Gain from acquisition of control – -13,118,559

Unrealised gains from
non-current and current assets 11, 12, 16 49,169,051 5,966,736

24,797,121 32,785,420

Acquisition of financial assets 12, 16 -55,003,324 -93,515,574

Sales of financial assets 12, 16, 22 120,466,107 18,952,035

Net change in loans and receivables -1,405,634 -2,110,917

Net change in borrowings and debts -521,675 1,490,305

Other changes 52,554 182,912

Net cash flows from operations 88,385,149 -42,215,818

Including:
Taxes paid -1,625,984 -2,263,348
Interest paid -4,247 -2,391
Interest received 3,495,079 2,380,829

Acquisitions / Disposals of tangible and intangible assets 10 -95,159 -5,186

Acquisitions / Creations of associates 11, 22 -4,725,500 -1,561,297

Disposals / Reductions of capital of associates  11, 22 2,101,657 7,082,004

Net cash flows from investing activities -2,719,002 5,515,521

Disposals / Acquisitions of own sharess 18 -2,871,800 1,500,004

Dividends paid 23 -17,317,464 -15,696,650

Net cash flows from financing activities -20,189,264 -14,196,646

Change in cash 65,476,882 -50,896,943

Cash at the beginning of the year 17 163,608,223 214,505,166

Cash at the end of the year 17 229,085,105 163,608,223

Change in cash 65,476,882 -50,896,943

Dividends paid are made up of dividends of the Company and dividends paid by the subsidiaries outside of the Group.

Consolidated statement of cash flow
as at 31 December 2012

The notes appearing in the appendix are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The notes appearing in the appendix are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Capital and Profit Share of Non-
share Own Legal Revaluation Other for the owners of  controlling

(expressed in €) Notes premium shares reserve reserve reserves period the company interest Total

Shareholders’ equity
as at 31/12/2011 74,998,110 -16,505,929 5,984,483 321,705,187 403,050,758  43,224,116 832,456,725    20,407,278 852,864,004

Dividends paid by
the Company 23 -17,317,464 -17,317,464 -17,317,464

Allocation of profit       4,289  43,315,405 -43,224,116          95,578          95,578

Cancellation of
own shares  -2,871,799    -2,871,799    -2,871,799

Change in scope
and other movements       302,583        302,583   -17,879,132  -17,576,549

Income and expenses
recognised in share-
holders’ equity and
profit for the period 11, 12   23,009,811 28,320,452   51,330,263         -16,730   51,313,533

Shareholders’ equity
as at 31/12/2012 74,998,110 -19,377,728 5,988,772 344,714,998 429,351,282 28,320,452 863,995,887      2,511,416 866,507,304

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
as at 31 December 2011

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
as at 31 December 2012

Capital and Profit Share of Non-
share Own Legal Revaluation Other for the owners of  controlling

(expressed in €) Notes premium shares reserve reserve reserves period the company interest Total

Shareholders’ equity
as at 31/12/2010 74,955,225 -17,797,588 5,984,483 332,432,569 405,117,785  13,148,033 813,840,507      491,295 814,331,802

Capital
increase         42,885         42,885         42,885

Dividends paid by
the Company 23  -15,696,650 -15,696,650 -15,696,650

Allocation of profit   13,148,033 -13,148,033                 –                 –

Cancellation of
own shares 1,291,659       208,345     1,500,004     1,500,004

Change in scope
and other movements       273,245       273,245   19,846,943 20,120,188

Income and expenses
recognised in share-
holders’ equity and
profit for the period 11, 12   -10,727,382 43,224,116   32,496,734         69,041  32,565,775

Shareholders’ equity
as at 31/12/2011 74,998,110 -16,505,929 5,984,483 321,705,187 403,050,758 43,224,116 832,456,726  20,407,278 852,864,004
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as at 31 December 2012

Note 1 - General information

Luxempart S.A. (“the Company” or “Luxempart”) is an investment company (SOPARFI) whose registered office is
located at 12, rue Léon Laval, L-3372 in Leudelange. The Company was founded on 25 April 1988 under the name
Bil Participations. The Annual General Meeting of 15 September 1992 decided to change the Company’s name to
Luxempart S.A. The consolidated financial statements for the financial years ending on 31 December 2011 and 31
December 2012 combine the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) and the Group’s holdings in associates. The
Company is listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and registered on the trade register under no. B27846.

Luxempart is primarily active in Luxembourg, Belgium, France and Germany; it actively manages a portfolio of listed
and non-listed holdings. Luxempart also operates through specialised subsidiaries:

• Luxempart Capital Partners S.A. Sicar, developing a private equity centre in companies established primarily in
Europe,

• Indufin Capital Partners S.A. Sicar, developing a private equity centre, is active in development capital and majority
buyout (MBO and LBO) operations.

• Luxempart Invest, an investment company,

• Algebra GmbH, developing a private equity centre, is active in development capital and majority buyout (MBO
and LBO) operations mainly in Germany,

• Actoline IV SAS, company managing a IP Santé Domicile holding in France.

On 28 March 2013, the Board of Directors approved the consolidated accounts as at 31 December 2012. The consolidated
accounts will be submitted for approval and publication authorisation during the annual general meeting held on
29 April 2013.

Note 2 - Consolidation principles, valuation rules, and accounting standards

Declaration of conformity

The consolidated financial statements were prepared for the first time as at 31 December 2005 (retroactively to
1 January 2004) in accordance with IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards) as adopted by the European
Union.

Framework for preparation and presentation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in euros (€). They have been prepared based on the historical
cost, with the exception of other available-for-sale assets and financial assets held for trading, which are measured at
fair value.

The functional currency and presentation currency of the financial statements is the euro (€).
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The accounting principles and rules are applied consistently on an ongoing basis within the Group. The consolidated
financial statements are prepared for the financial years ending on 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012 and are
presented before allocation of the Company’s profit. The profit’s allocation will be proposed to the Annual General
Meeting on 29 April 2013.

Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements under IFRS incorporate all companies controlled (fully or jointly) and/or significantly
influenced by the Group.

Subsidiaries (fully consolidated)

A subsidiary refers to a company in which the Group has exclusive control while holding decision-making power on
both financial and operational levels. In principle, this control is the consequence of directly holding more than 50% of
the voting rights.

These companies are fully consolidated starting from the date on which the entity’s control is assumed by the Group
and ceases on the day when this control is lost.

Subsidiaries that are more than 50% held but whose articles of association indicate joint control are consolidated
according to the equity method, as recommended by IAS 31.

Non-controlling interests are presented in shareholders’ equity on the consolidated statement of financial position,
separately from “Shareholders’ equity attributable to the Company’s owners”, and classified under “Non-controlling
interests”. Non-controlling interests in the Group’s profit are also indicated separately on the consolidated income
statement and classified under “Non-controlling interests”.

Expenses, income, assets, and liabilities of subsidiaries are fully incorporated into the consolidated financial statements.
Transactions between companies of the Group, intercompany accounts, and unrealised profits on intragroup transactions
are fully eliminated.

A list of the Group’s subsidiaries is presented in note 22.

Joint ventures and associates (equity method companies)

Joint venture refers to a company that, based on a contractual agreement between the Group and one or more other
parties, engages in an economic activity under joint control.

An associate is a company in which the Group has significant influence through its participation in the political,
financial, and operational decisions of the held company.

Significant influence is assumed when the Group directly or indirectly holds 20% or more of the voting rights through
its subsidiaries.

These companies are consolidated by the equity method. The value of the investment in an associate is impaired,
where appropriate, to recognise any permanent loss in value of each associate.

A list of the Group’s associates is presented in note 22.
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Transactions in foreign currencies

Transactions carried out in foreign currencies are converted into the functional currency at the exchange rate in force
as at the transaction date. At each close, the monetary items in foreign currencies are converted at the rate of the last
day of the financial year. Losses or profits from the realisation or conversion of monetary elements denominated in
foreign currencies are recorded on the consolidated income statement.

The following exchange rates were used for conversion of the consolidated financial statements. As at 31 December
2012, one euro is equal to:

US dollar 1.3196 USD

Pound sterling 0.8125 GBP

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the acquisition cost in relation to the Group’s share in the net fair value of identifiable
assets and liabilities as well as any contingent liabilities of a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity, or an associate as at the
acquisition date. Goodwill is considered an asset and is not subject to amortisation but is tested for impairment
annually as at the closing date (or at an earlier date if there is an indication of a loss of value).

Principle of impairment of assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation but is tested for impairment annually at the closing date of the financial year (or
at an earlier date if there is an indication of loss of value).

In addition, at each closing date, the Group reviews the carrying value of investments in associates as well as the
carrying value of tangible fixed assets and intangible fixed assets with a defined useful life in order to assess whether
there is any indication of a loss in value of these assets.

If such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the amount of the loss in
value. The recoverable amount is the higher value between the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
The value in use is the discounted value of estimated future cash flows expected from continued use of the asset.

Intangible fixed assets with a fixed life

Intangible fixed assets with a fixed life are valued at their acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lifes and its possible
residual value.

Intangible fixed assets are not subject to revaluations.

The useful life is as follows:

Acquired software 3 years
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Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are recognised at their acquisition cost (including related direct commissioning expenses) less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lifes. Costs related to maintenance are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Tangible fixed assets are not subject to revaluations.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Facilities, machines, tools, and transport equipment 3 to 5 years

Other tangible fixed assets, furnishings 10 years

Investments in securities

Available-for-sale assets

Available-for-sale assets presented in non-current assets are investments in which the Group does not exercise significant
influence. This lack of significant influence is assumed if the Group does not directly or indirectly hold more than 20%
of the voting rights. These investments are considered available-for-sale securities and are initially recognised at their
acquisition cost.

Available-for-sale assets are stated at fair value at the end of each reporting period, and changes in the carrying
amount are recognised in the revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity.

Listed shares are valued based on their market price on the closing date. Non-listed shares are valued based on
valuation methods in line with the requirements of the European Venture Capital Association (EVCA). Holding companies
are valued based on their intrinsic value less, in principle, an illiquidity discount.

An impairment mechanism is applied for available-for-sale assets in case of occurrence of events, circumstances,
changes, or projections significantly or permanently devaluing the fair value of said available-for-sale assets.

If the fair value recognised at the closing date is devalued in relation to the previous reference period but remains
greater than the acquisition price, impairment is recognised in revaluation reserve.

If the fair value recognised as at the closing date is devalued in relation to the reference period below the acquisition
price, the Audit Committee makes a proposal to the Board of Directors to impair the difference between the fair value
and the acquisition price not through the revaluation reserve but through the consolidated income statement.

The Group will carry out an automatic impairment through the consolidated income statement and not through the
revaluation reserve if the recognised fair value (market price) as at the closing date is lower than the IFRS acquisition
price:

• Either by more than 50%,

• Or for a consecutive period of more than 24 months.
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In case of an event after the reporting period but known before the accounts are approved by the Board of Directors,
the Board may, on the advice of the Audit Committee:

• forgo the impairment if the permanent nature of the impairment has disappeared due to the event after the
reporting period,

• recognise an impairment if the permanent nature of the impairment is determined.

In the event of disposal of an available-for-sale asset, the difference between the net proceeds from the sale and the
carrying amount (value on the balance sheet as at the disposal date, corrected for the accumulated amount in
shareholders’ equity for periodic revaluations at fair value of the asset) is recognised on the consolidated income
statement.

The transaction is recognised as at the settlement date.

During the measurement of the fair value of the available-for-sale assets in non-listed companies, Luxempart adopts a
multi-criteria approach and applies several of the following methods as a general rule:

• Discounted Cash Flows valuation: this method of valuation through the discounting of cash flows available to the
company calculates the enterprise value (EV) for all of its capital providers (banks and shareholders). The adopted
discounting rate comes from market data and varies between 5% and 15%.

• Market multiple valuation: the economic rationale for this valuation method is based on the principle of the law of
one price according to which two similar assets should be worth the same price (market multiple - example: x
times revenue).

• Reference price from letters of intent and/or capital increases in Luxempart’s holdings (or other forms of financing
giving access to capital).

• Recent transaction multiple valuation: the application of this method is identical to the method for market multiple
valuation, except that this method uses recent transaction multiples that are less volatile than market multiples.

• Net asset value or revalued net asset value valuation: net asset value refers to the shareholders’ equity of the
holding. The revalued net asset value is an estimate of the value of the shareholders’ equity that involves separately
assessing the company’s various assets and commitments and calculating their algebraic sum. It is also called the
assets or sum-of-parts method.

• Broker median/average valuation: this method involves valuing Luxempart’s holdings by finding the median of the
estimates of financial analysts who track Luxempart.

A weighting is then applied on the values obtained according to each method (the multiple valuation method and the
discounted cash flows valuation method, when they are applicable, are weighted at a minimum of 25%). Discounts for
illiquidity, minority holding, and specific cyclical risks are applied where appropriate (discounts vary from 5% to 30%).

Financial assets held for trading

Financial assets held for trading are assets acquired mainly with a view to be sold in the short term.
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They are valued at fair value at each closing date. Unrealised capital gains and losses are recognised on the consolidated
income statement.

In the event of disposal of a financial asset held for trading, the difference between the net proceeds from the sale and
the carrying amount is recognised on the consolidated income statement.

The transaction is recorded as at the settlement date.

Assets classified as held for sale

When, as at the closing date of the financial statements, it is highly probable that non-current assets or groups of
directly related assets and liabilities will be sold, they are designated as assets (or groups) held for sale. Their sale is
considered to be highly probable if, as at the closing date of the financial statements, a plan intended to offer them for
sale at a reasonable price in relation to their fair value has been initiated in order to find a buyer and carry out their sale
within a maximum period of one year. Non-current assets (or groups) held for sale are valued at the lower amount
between their carrying amount and their fair value less costs to sell. They are presented separately on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The transaction is recorded as at the settlement date.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assets not listed on the stock exchange and repayable with fixed maturity. They originate
when the Group either makes the funds available or makes the assets or services available. They are part of current
assets insofar as their maturity does not exceed twelve months after the closing date (short term). Otherwise, they are
part of non-current assets (long term).

Loans and receivables are valued at amortised cost according to the effective interest rate method. The accumulation
of asset impairment is recorded on the consolidated income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include liquidities and sight deposits, short-term deposits of less than three months, as well
as highly liquid, easily convertible investments.

Capital

Issued shares are considered to be representative of the share capital. When a company of the Group acquires shares
of the parent company, the price paid plus the related incurred costs are charged against shareholders’ equity at the
moment when these shares are cancelled or transferred. When such shares are transferred, the transfer price net of
expenses incurred during this transfer transaction and net of taxes is added to the Group’s shareholders’ equity.

Issued equity is recorded for the amount of cash obtained in exchange after deducting direct issue costs.

Capital management

Luxempart is an investment company listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and is part of the LuxX index.
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As at 31 December 2012, Luxempart’s share capital is € 59,887,710, and consolidated shareholders’ equity is
€ 866,507,303.

The Company’s share capital may be increased from its current amount to € 90,000,000 through the creation and
issuance of new shares without designation of nominal value, with the same rights and benefits as existing shares.

The Board of Directors has the authorisation, until the 2013 Annual General Meeting, to buy back own shares. The
accounting par value of the shares bought back, including own shares already previously acquired, may not exceed
20% of the subscribed capital. This own share buyback policy is intended to improve the security’s liquidity on the
stock exchange, grant shares to managers, cancel the own shares through a decision of the extraordinary annual
general meeting, or transfer these shares to a new shareholder.

With regard to the Group’s liquidity, any new investment is carried out only on own shares (excluding specific investments
in private equity projects, for which the use of external debt can be considered).

Bank borrowings and overdrafts

Bank borrowings and overdrafts bearing interest are recorded in the amount of the cash obtained after deducting any
direct issue expenses. Transaction expenses (if they are material) are amortised over the remaining life of the debt.
Current account credits are part of short-term debts.

Current and deferred taxes

Income taxes are calculated according to the legal requirements. Advances paid for a specific financial year and provisions
for income taxes (IRC and ICC) estimated for the same financial year are offset.

Deferred taxes originate when a temporary difference appears between the taxable base of an asset or liability and the
value at which it appears on the consolidated statement of financial position. Deferred tax is calculated by applying the
marginal rate of tax as well as the provisions of the law in force at the time of the calculation.

Deferred tax assets are recorded in assets when it is likely that taxable profits will be available, allowing the deferred tax
asset to be used.

When a company of the Group has unused tax losses, the Group records a deferred tax asset only to the extent that
the Group has convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available during future financial years.

Provisions and other liabilities

Provisions are recorded once the Group has an actual obligation (legal or implied) resulting from past events that will
probably generate an outflow of resources representative of economic benefits at an amount that can be reasonable
estimated.

Other liabilities are recorded at their nominal value.
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Fair value hierarchy

A portion of the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets is classified in level 3 (assets whose valuation is not based on
observable market data). These level 3 assets represent 4.15% of available-for-sale financial assets as at 31 December 2012.

The valuation models for these investments are based on comparable company multiple methods as well as discounting
of free cash flows. A reasonable variation of 10% of the multiples or a weighted average of them is used in order to
measure the impact on the fair value of these assets.

Credit and concentration risk

Luxempart has granted loans to companies of the Group, private companies, and individuals totalling € 5,197,634 as
at 31 December 2012 (2011: € 4,769,757). These assets represent 0.59% of Luxempart’s total assets.

If necessary, Luxempart may grant guarantees to companies in which it has invested. During 2012, there was no
change in approach with regard to credit management.

Luxempart minimises its risk exposure by entering into commitments with financial institutions with a high rating. In
order to minimise any concentration risk, Luxempart diversifies its exposure with a minimum of seven banking institutions.

Segment information

The Luxempart Group’s investment policy is not determined based on a segment distribution. Investments are made as
opportunities arise regardless of any segment and/or geographical area.

Luxempart has not determined any operating segments.

Income from ordinary activities

The Group recognises delivery of services to its associated holdings. They are recognised based on the degree of
progress. These services are the subject of a service contract between the entities involved.

The Group also recognises dividends on the date of receipt. They result from the distribution of profits to holders of
equity instruments in proportion to the rights that they hold in a category of securities making up the capital.

Accounting methods, changes in accounting estimates

The accounting methods adopted as at 31 December 2012 are consistent with the previous financial year.

The entry into force of the following standards and interpretations, as adopted by the European Union, had no effect
on the Group’s consolidated annual accounts.

• Amendments to IFRS 1 “First-time Adoption of IFRS” regarding serious hyperinflation and the firm dates of
application for first-time adopters,

• Amendments to IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” entitled “Transfers of Financial Assets”,
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• Amendments to IAS 12 “Income Taxes” entitled “Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets”

Certain standards, interpretations, and amendments of standards that have been published by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) are not yet applied in the European Union for the preparation of the accounts for
financial year 2012. The Group did not anticipate their application.

• First phase of IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, intended to replace IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”, not adopted by the European Union,

• IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”, applicable as from financial year 2013, the impacts of this standard are being
analysed and are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s Financial Statements,

• Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” entitled “Presentation of Other Comprehensive
Income”, applicable as from financial year 2013,

• Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” relating to defined-benefit schemes, applicable as from financial
year 2013, the impacts of which on the Group’s financial statements should not be significant,

• Amendments to IAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation” applicable as from financial year 2013, and IFRS 7
“Financial Instruments: Disclosures” applicable as from financial year 2014,

• The IASB has published “Investment Entities” amending IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12
– Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, and IAS 27 – Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. These
amendments apply to companies considered investment entities, which will now be exempt from the accounting
provisions of the standard on consolidated financial statements, IFRS 10. This standard is not yet approved by the
European Union and will apply as at 1 January 2014 if approved by the European Union.

Luxempart expects that the application of the changes will have no significant impact on the Company’s net
assets, as most investments are measured at fair value. However, the application will have an impact on the
presentation of the assets, the components of shareholders’ equity, and particularly the revaluation reserve, as
well as the presentation of items of the income statement.

A change in accounting method is applied only if it meets the provisions of a standard or interpretation or permits
more reliable, more relevant information. Changes in accounting method are recognised retrospectively, except in
cases of a transitional provision specific to the standard or interpretation. An error, when it is discovered, is also
adjusted retrospectively.

The uncertainties inherent in the activity require the use of estimates in preparing the financial statements. Estimates
come from judgments intended to provide a reasonable assessment of the most recent available reliable information.
An estimate is revised in order to reflect changes in circumstances, new available information, and effects related to
experience.
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Note 3 - Segment information

Luxempart is an investment company listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, managing a portfolio of listed and
non-listed holdings since 1988 in Luxembourg, Belgium, France, and Germany. Each holding is managed then sold in
order to increase the Company’s wealth, thus creating value for its shareholders.

In working as a professional shareholder, Luxempart has four distinct focuses:

• Supportive investments: Luxempart favours due diligence in its portfolio selection and management, continuous
and prudent risk management, as well as a long-term value creation horizon. Luxempart acquires minority holdings
in most cases. Luxempart undertakes its profession as an investor through active involvement in the strategic
choices, major decisions, and control procedures of investments, by sitting, to the extent possible, on Board
meetings and by ensuring good corporate governance practices. Continuous support is given to management
teams without, however, interfering in the day-to-day handling of business.

• Private equity: Luxempart invests in companies with high potential in which it uses financial leverage or not.
Investments in this segment are often accompanied by acquisition of a majority holding, where applicable, as
Luxempart wishes to control its exit horizon. The amounts invested by company are less than those dedicated to
supportive investments. The investment horizon is generally short or medium term.

• Asset portfolio: In order to optimise its cash management and diversify its assets, Luxempart has created a
portfolio of securities. The investment horizon is short to medium term. The goal is to generate recurring revenue
and register capital gains.

• Private equity funds: Luxempart has invested in this asset class in order to diversify its long-term investments
while seeking an appropriate return for its shareholders. These private equity investments also allow Luxempart to
group together some of its investments.

a. Long-term investments

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Luxembourg 523,678,577 520,602,702

Belgium 20,590,854 14,392,399

Germany 24,645,077 23,569,793

France 22,846,765 28,233,986

Spain 7,940,000 31,080,300

Other 7,903,809 2,819,750

Total 607,605,083 620,698,931



80 Luxempart S.A.  IFRS consolidated financial statements as at 31 december 2012

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Supportive investments 523,310,403 528,365,310

Private equity 70,323,938 54,797,299

Asset portfolio 3,787,053 28,496,229

Private equity funds 10,183,689 9,040,093

Total 607,605,083 620,698,931

b. Dividends received

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Luxembourg 21,427,181 19,460,444

Belgium 1,047,000 1,061,534

France 1,056,404 2,443,692

Germany 16,465 22,285

Spain 886,150 333,897

Other 174,703 670,605

Total 24,607,903 23,992,457

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Supportive investments 22,965,646 19,929,728

Asset portfolio 1,559,525 2,193,695

Private equity funds 82,732 1,869,033

Total 24,607,903 23,992,457

c. Interest income

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Germany 1,780,797 1,627,076

Total 1,780,797 1,627,076

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Supportive investments 1,525,797 1,316,876

Private equity 255,000 310,200

Total 1,780,797 1,627,076
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d. Gains or losses realised on disposed non-current financial assets

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Luxembourg 55,264,841 58,602

Belgium 39,500 758,159

France -7,015,536 1,058,283

Germany – -19,497

Spain -1,055,991 –

Total 47,232,814 1,855,546

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Supportive investments 55,264,841 22,952

Private equity 39,500 -

Asset portfolio -8,071,527 1,832,594

Total 47,232,814 1,855,546

Note 4 - Other operating expenses

The following table provides details of other operating expenses.

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Taxes and levies other than income tax 208,911 395,590

Compensation paid to directors 326,800 294,400

Professional fees 1,401,248 2,623,799

Rental expenses 81,866 55,768

Insurance expenses 62,086 68,784

Administrative expenses and other operating expenses 902,241 698,621

Total 2,983,151 4,136,962

All expenses are recorded on the consolidated income statement at the time of the transaction.
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Note 5 - Personnel costs

The following table indicates the average number of employees over the financial year.

Category 2012 2011

Executives 4 2

Employees 6.5 5

 10.5 7

The following table provides details of personnel costs and benefits.

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Remuneration, wages, and bonuses 1,910,320 1,082,455

Social security contributions 108,980 79,818

Supplementary pension plan 54,247 54,073

Stock option plan 286,082 187,531

Total 2,359,629 1,403,877

The Group has opted for a defined-contribution scheme and pays contributions to a separate entity (Foyer Vie) annually.
The Group will have no legal or implied obligation to pay additional contributions if said entity does not have enough
assets to cover the benefits corresponding to the services rendered by staff members during the period in progress and
prior periods.

Premiums are paid annually and recorded directly on the consolidated income statement.

The Group offers defined-contribution pension plans to its employees. These plans are managed by the state of
Luxembourg.

Luxempart must pay contributions corresponding to a percentage of the payroll expenses into the retirement scheme
in order to fund these benefits.

The only obligation with regard to the retirement scheme involves paying the defined contributions, and these
contributions are recorded in personnel costs.

Stock option plan for management

During the first half of 2009, Luxempart established a stock option plan for members of management.

In May 2009, the Board of Directors granted 1,575 Luxempart options with an exercise price of € 212 per share.
Following the split, and for 2009, 15,750 options were granted with an exercise price of € 21.20 per share.

For financial year 2010, the Board of Directors granted 18,250 Luxempart options with an exercise price of € 23.99
per share.
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For financial year 2011, the Board of Directors granted 22,810 Luxempart options with an exercise price of € 23.64
per share.

For financial year 2012, the Board of Directors granted 27,375 Luxempart options with an exercise price of € 22.50
per share.

The fair value of the options is calculated according to a matrix using a Monte Carlo analysis. A personnel expense is
recognised on the consolidated income statement. This impact for 2012 is € 286,082.

The table below summarises the movements of the year:

Number of options as at 01/01/2012 56,810

Options exercised in 2012 –

Options matured in 2012 –

Options issued in  2012 27,375

Number of options as at 31/12/2012 84,185

The table below provides the plan’s characteristics:

Characteristics of the stock option plan

Number of options as at 31/12/2012 84,185

Exercise price per share 1st tranche 21.20

Exercise price per share 2nd tranche 23.99

Exercise price per share 3rd tranche 23.64

Exercise price per share 4th tranche 22.50

Exercise period 1st tranche May 2012 - May 2019

Exercise period 2nd tranche May 2013 - May 2020

Exercise period 3rd tranche May 2014 - May 2021

Exercise period 4th tranche May 2015 - May 2022

Share price when granted 1st tranche 22

Share price when granted 2nd tranche 22.51

Share price when granted 3rd tranche 22.84

Share price when granted 4th tranche 24.94

Dividend growth 10.00%

Historical volatility of share price 29.65%

Discount rate 1.59%

As at 31 December 2012, the liability relating to the stock option plan amounts to € 809,244 and is included in “non-
current provisions and borrowings” note 20.
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Note 6 - Dividends on long-term investments

The following table breaks down the dividends received during the financial year.

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Foyer S.A. 782,142 642,980

Foyer Finance 2,431,737 2,210,670

SES 10,681,672 9,710,611

RTL Group 6,456,294 5,288,055

Other 4,256,057 6,140,140

Total 24,607,903 23,992,456

Note 7 - Financial income and expenses

The following tables provide details of financial income and expenses.

a. Interest and similar income

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Interest income 5,398,643 4,012,513

Other income 140,782 149,157

Total 5,539,425 4,161,670

b. Interest and similar expenses

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Bank expenses and interest expenses 227,838 130,082

Other expenses 424,037 103,064

Total 651,875 233,146

Interest income includes mainly interest on deposit accounts with credit institutions. An analysis of the financial risk
relating to interest is detailed in note 26.

Bank expenses and interest expenses primarily include interest on short-term cash advances of the financial year.
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Note 8 - Current and deferred tax expense

The Group recorded the current tax expense on the corporate profits of all of the Group’s companies as follows:

a. Details of taxes on ordinary activities and other taxes

(Figures in €)  2012 2011

Corporate income tax (“IRC”) -11,710 -170,956

Municipal business tax (“ICC”) – -56,145

Deferred taxes 304,120 62,718

Taxes on profit from ordinary activities (b.) 292,409 -164,383

Wealth tax 5,954 177,635

Total 298,363 13,252

b. Reconciliation of tax expense on profit from ordinary activities

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Profit before taxes (excluding profit from associates) 22,904,233 18,180,285

Company’s average tax rate 29.55% 29.55%

Theoretical tax expense 6,768,201 5,372,274

SICAR specific tax scheme -258,408 -862,324

Discounts from previous years 11,750 242,472

Notional interest – 1,185,698

Tax impact of non-taxable capital gains 1,063,960 649,082

Tax impact of non-taxable dividends -7,222,295 -7,031,644

Other tax adjustments -70,797 280,060

Total tax expense 292,409 -164,383

The tax impact of adjustments from previous years results from tax provisions relating to non-deductible value
adjustments.

As at 31 December 2012, Luxempart has not recognised tax losses available for carry-forward because of the uncertainty
regarding taxable profits in the medium term.
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Note 9 - Intangible fixed assets

The movements in intangible fixed assets that occurred during financial years 2011 and 2012 can be summarised as
follows:

Cost (Figures in €) Acquired Software

as at 31/12/2010 24,787

Additions and disposals –

as at 31/12/2011 24,787

Additions and disposals –

as at 31/12/2012 24,787

Additions and disposals (Figures in €) Acquired Software

as at 31/12/2010 11,772

Depreciation expense 3,884

as at 31/12/2011 15,656

Depreciation expense 3,772

as at 31/12/2012 19,428

Carrying amount (Figures in €) Acquired Software

as at 31/12/2011 9,131

as at 31/12/2012 5,359

Note 10 - Tangible fixed assets

The movements in tangible fixed assets that occurred during financial years 2011 and 2012 can be summarised as
follows:

Office equipment Rolling
Cost (Figures in €) and IT stock Total

as at 31/12/2010 32,181 54,300 86,481

Additions and disposals 5,186 – 5,186

as at 31/12/2011 37,367 54,300 91,667

Additions and disposals 93,476 – 93,476

as at 31/12/2012 130,843 54,300 185,143
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Office equipment Rolling
Depreciation (Figures in €) and IT stock Total

as at 31/12/2010 26,150 5,430 31,580

Additions and disposals 3,572 10,860 14,432

as at 31/12/2011 29,722 16,290 46,012

Additions and disposals 8,725 10,860 19,585

as at 31/12/2012 38,447 27,150 65,597

Office equipment Rolling
Carrying amount (Figures in €) and IT stock Total

as at 31/12/2011 7,645 38,010 45,655

as at 31/12/2012 92,396 27,150 119,546

During financial year 2012, a tangible fixed asset (office and computer equipment) was eliminated from assets for
€ 1,683.

Note 11 - Investments in associates

The following tables provide details of changes in the investments in associates for 2011 and 2012.

(Figures in €)

Fair value as at 31/12/2010 74,360,940

Acquisitions during financial year 1,561,297

Disposals during financial year -7,082,004

Share of profit 11,284,792

Elimination of dividend -9,167,078

Change in fair value through reserves -5,770,854

Change in scope and other 3,549

Fair value as at 31/12/2011 52,393,867

Acquisitions during financial year 4,725,500

Disposals during financial year -2,101,657

Share of profit 4,221,264

Elimination of dividend -370,152

Change in fair value through reserves -2,955,625

Change in fair value through profit and loss -2,346,372

Change in scope and other -40,977

Fair value as at 31/12/2012 53,525,848
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According to the equity method, the investments in associates are initially recognised at acquisition cost. The carrying
amount fluctuates based on:

• The Group’s share in the profits of the associate after the acquisition date,

• adjustments relating to revaluations of long-term investments held by companies accounted for under the equity
method.

During the financial year, Luxempart participated in capital increase and reduction operations in Indufin Capital
Partners S.A. for a net amount of € 2,623,843.

As at 31 December 2012, Luxempart recognised an impairment of € 2,346,372 on its DS Care holding. Following the
austerity measures taken by the Italian government, the Lombardy health authorities implemented a gradual restriction
of their repayments. The particularly difficult economic environment in Italy has made competition more intense in this
sector. These items weighed on the Group’s profitability and thus forced us to revise our business plan downward and
record this impairment.

Financial disclosures about investments in associates as at 31 December 2012

Indufin QUIP
Capital Interim

 Partners S.A. Holding
(Figures in €)  Sicar Indufin S.A. DS Care S.A.  GmbH

Total shareholders’ equity 96,486,975 129,525 18,822,251 2,653,170

Total Assets/Liabilities 97,693,906 2,484,933 45,234,368 21,065,325

Revenue 151,793 1,667,111 29,122,575 19,379,748

Profit for the period 18,396,443 13,466 -442,983 -444,036
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Note 12 - Other available-for-sale assets

The following tables provide details of changes in available-for-sale assets for 2011 and 2012.

(Figures in €) Total

Fair value as at 31/12/2010 529,680,160

Acquisitions during the period 55,510,562

Disposals during the period -9,774,553

Gains / (losses) on disposal of non-current assets 1,855,546

Change in fair value through reserves -4,914,549

Change in fair value through profit and loss -4,052,101

Fair value as at 31/12/2011 568,305,064

Acquisitions during the period 52,377,549

Disposals during the period -91,402,727

Gains / (losses) on disposal of non-current assets 47,232,814

Change in fair value through reserves 26,053,518

Change in fair value through profit and loss -48,486,982

Fair value as at 31/12/2012 554,079,235

Available-for-sale assets are broken down as follows:

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Fixed-income assets 528,648,131 551,268,384

Variable-income assets 25,431,104 17,036,680

Total 554,079,235 568,305,064

The change in fair value through profit and loss is related to an impairment on the Poweo holding as well as a total
impairment of € 39,162,445 on the Pescanova investment (note 28).

During financial year 2012, Luxempart also acquired a Pescanova convertible bond for € 17,000,000. In view of the
situation described in note 28, Luxempart recognised an impairment of € 9,060,000.

A portion of the positions recognised in other available-for-sale assets is subject to market risks. An analysis of the risk
related to price fluctuations is provided in note 26.
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During financial year 2012, Luxempart acquired a holding in IP Santé Domicile through its subsidiary Actoline IV for a
total of € 14,205,000, which represents 100% of the investment.

The Group sold its investment in EUB for € 8,794,164. The proceeds from this sale have been partially collected, and
the balance has been incorporated into “long-term loans and receivables, note 13.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the data allowing valuations to be established.

Level 1: Quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Data other than quoted market prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (for example, prices) or indirectly (for example, elements derived from prices);

Level 3: Data about the asset or liability not based on observable market data.

(Figures in €) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Fair value as at 31/12/2010 395,113,382 82,505,429 52,061,346 529,680,160

Acquisition during the period 52,945,642 1,065,168 1,499,759 55,510,570

Disposal during the period -9,715,753 – -58,800 -9,774,553

Gains / (losses) on disposal
of non-current assets 1,796,944 – 58,602 1,855,546

Change in fair value
through reserves -5,107,212 568,985 -376,322 -4,914,549

Change in fair value
through profit and loss -4,052,101 – – -4,052,101

Fair value as at 31/12/2011 430,980,902 84,139,581 53,184,576 568,305,064

Acquisition during the period 30,107,334 532,367 21,737,853 52,377,555

Disposal during the period -23,569,063 – -67,833,664 -91,402,727

Gains / (losses) on disposal
of non-current assets -8,071,527 – 55,304,333 47,232,806

Change in fair value
through reserves 56,745,702 8,721,464 -39,413,648 26,053,518

Change in fair value
through profit and loss -48,486,981 – – -48,486,981

Fair value as at 31/12/2012 437,706,368 93,393,412 22,979,450 554,079,235

During the financial year, there were no transfers between fair value levels.
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Note 13 - Long-term loans and receivables

The following table provides details of the long-term loans and receivables.

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Loans 5,197,634 4,769,757

Total 5,197,634 4,769,757

The fair value of the various components of long-term receivables does not differ significantly from their carrying
amount. These receivables are greater than one year and pertain to loans granted to investments in associates.

Note 14 - Deferred taxes

The deferred taxes recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position are broken down as follows:

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities

(Figures in €) 2012 2011 2012 2011

Financial assets 427 427 1,097,379 705,193

Untaxed reserves – – 4,606,001 4,606,001

Total 427 427 5,703,379 5,311,193

IAS 12

Luxempart benefits from the provisions of Article 54 of the Luxembourg income tax law (LIR) on tax exemptions on
realised capital gains. This item was reintegrated into the Group’s shareholders’ equity after deduction of a deferred
tax liability of € 4,606,001 during financial year 2012 (2011: € 4,606,001).

The item “Financial assets” includes deferred taxes relating to IAS 39 below and deferred taxes calculated on unrealised
capital gains and losses recorded through the consolidated income statement.

IAS 39

The changes in deferred tax liabilities relating to IAS 39 represent the share of deferred taxes in the fair value of other
available-for-sale financial assets. The various holdings that do not have the parent/child scheme, as defined by Article
166 bis of the Luxembourg income tax law (LIR), give rise to the calculation of a deferred tax:

• Liability in the case of an unrealised capital gain,

• Asset in the case of an unrealised capital loss.
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Note 15 - Short-term loans and receivables

The following table provides details of the short-term loans and receivables.

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Tax receivables 1,499,637 1,500,812

Trade receivables 315,116 151,428

Other receivables 6,482,505 1,868,997

Accrual accounts 10,550 14,650

Total 8,307,808 3,535,887

The fair value of the various components of short-term receivables does not differ significantly from their carrying
amount. The maturity of short-term receivables is less than one year.

Other receivables are made up of receivables from associates and accrued interest not yet due (€ 2,025,191).

Note 16 - Financial assets held for trading

Movements that occurred on this item during the financial year are presented below:

(Figures in €)

Fair value as at 31/12/2010 547,576

Acquisitions during the period 38,005,004

Disposals during the period -9,177,481

Gains / (losses) on disposal of current assets -599,666

Change in fair value through profit and loss -1,914,635

Fair value as at 31/12/2011 26,860,797

Acquisitions during the period 7,510,288

Disposals during the period -5,410,765

Gains / (losses) on disposal of current assets 140,181

Change in fair value through profit and loss 1,664,303

Fair value as at 31/12/2012 30,764,803

Financial assets held for trading mainly include shares that are subject to market risk. An analysis of the risk related to
price fluctuations is detailed in note 26.
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Note 17 - Cash and cash equivalents

The following table provides details of the cash position.

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Bank depots with credit institutions 56,648,978 116,787,995

Cash at bank and in hand 172,436,127 46,820,228

Total 229,085,105 163,608,223

Fixed-term deposits generally have maturities ranging from 15 to 30 days based on the Group’s liquidity requirements.
Deposits bear interest at variable rates in force on the market. An analysis of the liquidity risk is provided in note 26.

Note 18 - Capital, share premium, own shares, and earning per share

a. Capital, share premium, and own shares

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Subscribed capital 59,887,710 59,887,710

Share premium 15,110,400 15,110,400

Own shares -19,377,728 -16,505,929

Total 55,620,382 58,492,181

As at 31 December 2012, the Group acquired 127,500 own shares for a total of € 2,871,800. The weighted average
number of outstanding shares used to calculate the profit per share is € 22,995,067.

b. Number of shares

2012 2011

Number of shares issued as at 01/01 23,955,084 23,937,930

Number of new shares issued –            17,154

Number of own shares held 939,470 939,470

Number of outstanding shares as at 01/01 23,015,614 23,015,614

Number of own shares acquired or transferred during the period 127,500 -68,182

Average number of own shares acquired or transferred during the period -88,729 21,591

Weighted average number of outstanding shares as at 31/12 22,995,067 23,037,205
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c. Earning per share

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Net profit for the financial year - attributable to the Company’s owners 28,320,452 43,224,116

Weighted average number of issued shares 22,995,067 23,037,205

Earning per share - attributable to the Company’s owners 1.23 1.88

Authorised capital totals € 90,000,000.

As at 31 December 2012, subscribed capital amounts to € 59,887,710 and is represented by 23,955,084 fully paid-up
shares without designation of nominal value. Each share entitles the holder to a dividend and a vote during General
Meetings.

There are no other share classes or options or pre-emptive rights entitling holders to the issuance of shares of another
class that could have a dilutive effect on the number of shares issued.

Note 19 - Reserves

The following table provides details of the reserves.

a. Reserves

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Legal reserve 5,988,772 5,984,483

Revaluation reserve 344,714,998 321,705,187

Total 350,703,770 327,689,670

b. Other reserves

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Consolidated reserves 417,595,543 391,295,018

Special reserve 9,445,899 9,445,899

Reserves for wealth tax deductions 2,309,840 2,309,840

Total 429,351,283 403,050,757

Grand total 780,055,053 730,740,427
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Legal reserve

From the net profit of the accounts drawn up according to Luxembourg reference standards, 5% must be deducted
annually to build up the reserve fund required by Luxembourg law. This deduction will no longer be mandatory when
the reserve fund reaches one-tenth of the share capital.

The legal reserve may not be distributed to the shareholders except in case of dissolution of the Company.

Revaluation reserve

As at 31 December 2012, this item amounts to € 344,714,998 (2011: € 321,705,187) and mainly includes unrealised
capital gains and losses net of deferred taxes coming from the change in fair value of other available-for-sale assets
according to the provisions of IAS 39. During financial year 2012, a share of the revaluation reserve was transferred to
the consolidated income statement because of the disposal of a portion of the financial assets. This share amounts to
€ 34,677,985 (2011: € 1,355,996), which is found under “Gains/(losses) on disposal of non-current assets”.

During financial year 2012, Luxempart also recognised impairment on its investment in Pescanova. The adjustment
previously recognised in the revaluation reserve was transfered through profit and loss. This adjustment is € 4,282,226.

Special reserve

As at 31 December 2012, this item amounts to € 9,445,899 (2011: € 9,445,899) and includes the gains from disposal
on untaxed securities (Special items with share of reserve). These gains, recorded in liabilities on the consolidated
statement of financial position, result from application of Article 54 of the law pertaining to income tax and must be
reinvested before the end of the second financial year of operation following the financial year of the disposal. If these
gains are not reinvested within these periods, they will be reversed through the consolidated income statement and
subject to tax.

Consolidated reserves

Consolidated reserves include the change in the reserves of the consolidated companies during the financial year as
well as any movements related to consolidation entries. These reserves also include the IFRS adjustments of companies
within the consolidation scope. The total amount of these reserves as at 31 December 2012 is € 417,595,543 (2011:
€ 391,295,018).

Reserves for wealth tax deductions

In accordance with the tax laws in force, the Company set off the wealth tax expense against the amount of the
corporate income tax. In order to comply with the relevant laws, the Company decided to allocate an amount
corresponding to five times the amount of the wealth tax deduction to a restricted reserve. The period of unavailability
of this reserve is five years from the year following that of the set-off of the wealth tax. This reserve is € 2,309,840 as
at 31 December 2012 (2011: € 2,309,840).
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Note 20 - Non-current provisions and borrowings

The following table provides details of the non-current provisions.

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Tax liabilities 4,022,534 4,352,185

Other liabilities 809,244 523,162

Total 4,831,778 4,875,347

These are tax provisions for income taxes and municipal business taxes of previous years.

The “Borrowing” item for € 2,460,567 corresponds to the share of minority holdings of Actoline IV.

The fair value of the borrowing does not differ significantly from its carrying amount.

Note 21 - Short-term debts

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Tax and social liabilities 225,777 255,596

Trade payables 1,284,119 2,230,578

Other liabilities 61,726 –

Accrual accounts 11,115 10,425

Total 1,582,737 2,496,598

Tax and social liabilities, trade payables, and other liabilities mainly come from sums due to the Group’s various suppliers
and service providers as part of its activities. They are due and payable within three months.

The fair value of short-term debts does not differ significantly from their carrying amount.
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Note 22 - List of subsidiaries and consolidated entities

a. Fully consolidated subsidiaries

Consolidation Consolidation
rate rate

Company Address 2012 2011 Activity

Luxempart Capital 12, Rue Léon Laval
100.00% 100.00% HoldingPartners S.A. Sicar L-3372 Leudelange

Luxempart Invest S.à r.l
12, Rue Léon Laval

100.00% 100.00% HoldingL-3372 Leudelange

Luxempart Ireland Limited
1st Floor, Riverview House

100.00% 100.00% Holding21-23 City Quay Dublin 2

Pescahold S.A.
12, Rue Léon Laval

100.00% 100.00% HoldingL-3372 Leudelange

45, av. J.F. Kennedy
Groupe

Groupe Utopia
L-1855 Luxembourg

0.00% 54.87% cinéma-
tographique

Algebra GmbH
Steinstraße 27

88.00% 88.00% HoldingD-40210 Düsseldorf

Actoline IV SAS
148, boulevard Haussmann

65.61% 0.00% HoldingF-75008 Paris

b. Associates consolidated by the equity method

Consolidation Consolidation
rate rate

Company Address 2012 2011 Activity

Indufin Capital 12, Rue Léon Laval
50.00% 50.00% Private equityPartners S.A. Sicar (*) L-3372 Leudelange

Indufin S.A.(*)
Interlevenlaan, 15/B1

40.00% 40.00% Private equityB-3001 Leuven / Haasrode

14, Rue du Marché
DS Care S.A.(*) aux Herbes 45.00% 45.00% Private equity

L-1728 Luxembourg

QUIP Interim Holding GmbH (*)
Markt 45-47

51.00% 51.00% Private equityD-52062 Aachen

(*) company under joint control
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The investments held by Indufin Capital Partners S.A. Sicar are not consolidated by the equity method but valued at fair
value within Indufin Capital Partners S.A. Sicar, itself consolidated for by the equity method (note 11).

The investment in Quip is consolidated according to the equity method, as the articles of association and the resulting
shareholders’ agreements provide for joint control.

The equity method value of these associates as at 31 December 2012 is € 53,525,848 (2011: € 52,393,867)
(note 11). According to IAS 31 and alternatively, companies under joint control are consolidated according to the
equity method.

During the first half of 2012, Luxempart sold its 54.87% holding in Utopia to a Luxembourg consortium made up of
Utopia Management and CLdN.

The profit from the sale was mainly recognised over financial year 2011 at the time when control of Utopia was
acquired. An additional impact on the profit of € 1,476,588 was recognised for financial year 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, Luxempart recognised an impairment of € 2,346,372 on its DS Care holding. Following the
austerity measures taken by the Italian government, the Lombardy health authorities implemented a gradual restriction
of their repayments. The particularly difficult economic environment in Italy has made competition more intense in this
sector. These items weighed on the Group’s profitability and thus forced us to revise our business plan downward and
record this impairment.

Note 23 - Dividends

A dividend of € 0.7502 gross per share, compared with € 0.682 gross per share in 2011, was paid during the first half
of 2012 for financial year 2011.

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Previous financial year’s dividend paid during the financial year 17,317,464 15,696,650

Total dividend paid during the financial year 17,317,464 15,696,650

The accounts for financial year 2012 do not take into account the dividend that will be proposed to the Annual
General Meeting of 29 April 2013. It was not recognised as a debt in the 2012 financial statements.

The Board of Directors proposes an ordinary dividend of € 0.8252 gross per share. The payment terms of the dividend
will be communicated during the Ordinary Annual General Meeting of 29 April 2013.
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Note 24 - Main off-balance sheet rights and commitments

The Group has invested in investment funds and committed itself for a total of € 12,257,490. As at 31 December
2012, the Group still had to pay € 832,559.

The Group has made the commitment to invest $7,248,800 in O3B, an operator of satellites. As at 31 December 2012,
$2,077,298 remained to be paid.

Note 25 - Remuneration granted to directors and management bodies

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Profit shares, fixed compensation, and attendance fees 408,500 368,000

Managing executive remuneration 1,130,194 733,301

Total paid during the financial year 1,538,694 1,101,301

The remuneration granted to directors and management bodies during financial year 2012 is incorporated in “Other
operating expenses”.

Note 26 - Financial risks

The Group’s major risk is the exposure of its financial assets to market risk. The policy for managing this risk is established
and controlled by the Management Committee, the Board of Directors, and the Audit Committee.

Investments in listed companies represent 54.06% as at 31 December 2012 (2011: 53.68%) of the Group’s net assets.

The Group’s investments are mainly in companies listed on the stock exchange (Luxembourg Stock Exchange, Brussels
Stock Exchange, and Paris Stock Exchange). The table below presents the investment by asset class based on the total
financial assets.

2012 2011

Investment in listed companies 80.10% 76.93%

Investment in Private Equity 18.16% 21.55%

Investment in Private Equity Funds 1.74% 1.52%

Total 100.00% 100.00%
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Management of market risk

Market risk applies to the loss in value of assets invested through the stock exchange in equity or mutual fund units.
These securities are listed on the stock exchange and are thus subject to the variations and risks inherent in the
financial markets. It is possible that at a given moment, the value of all or some of these securities will be less than the
most recently established book value. An analysis of the sensitivity of the invested assets is provided in the table below.
A range of variation of +10% to -10% was applied to the valuation as at 31 December 2012. This variant influences
the consolidated reserves and income statement. This risk variable is relevant and reasonably possible. Luxempart has
a long-term view of its holdings and therefore does not systematically withdraw from its investments based on price
volatility. Nevertheless, Luxempart S.A. monitors changes in the prices of its listed holdings on a daily basis.

(Figures in €) -10% -5% +5% +10%

Change through profit and loss -3,582,407 -1,802,777 1,273,703 2,811,944

Change through reserves -40,721,600 -20,349,226 20,878,300 41,492,063

Management of interest rate risk

Management of interest rate risk involves hedging (fully or partially) the fluctuation of interest rates on debt with a
fixed interest rate according to its own policy adopted by the Board of Directors of each entity based on its needs.

The average duration of the placement of fixed-term deposits is 30 days, and the average rate over 2012 is 0.56%. As
at 31 December 2012, the average rate is 0.12%. The analysis below presents, at a like-for-like bank balance, the pre-
tax impacts that the decrease in interest rates had on the Group’s profit.

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Variable of + 50 basis points 981,733 945,283

Variable of - 50 basis points -981,733 -945,283

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Variable in relation to the current average rate -863,948 388,564

As at 31 December 2012, with a rate of 0.12%, the interest collected would decrease by € 863.948.

Management of foreign exchange risk

The Group invests mainly in positions in the Group’s functional currency (EUR). There is no significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk.

Management of credit risk

Credit risk involves the risk that contracted third parties will not meet their commitments towards the Group during
transactions with it.

Each holding is responsible for managing credit risk according to the specific terms most appropriate for the situation.
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Management of liquidity risk

As at 31 December 2012, Luxempart has no financial debts and has a high level of liquidity. The liquidity default risk
is low.

Note 27 - Related parties

Revenue includes exclusively rebillings to the investments in associates. They include administrative expenses paid by
the parent company.

The Foyer Assurances group rebills, on a quarterly basis, office rental expenses and other related expenses, IT management
services, insurance expenses, and miscellaneous services for a total of € 448,900 in 2012.

Consulting fees relating to a member of Luxempart’s management committee are rebilled on a quarterly basis and
total € 504,900 for financial year 2012.

Legal fees rebilled by the firm of a member of the board of directors as at 31 December 2012 are € 48,600.

These various expenses are included in “Other operating expenses” (note 4).

Note 28 - Events after the reporting period

Pescanova

Following a sudden, unexplained need for cash at the beginning of the year, putting the company’s viability into
question, Pescanova’s Board of Directors, on the initiative of representatives of Luxempart and the Damm* Group
refused to approve the 2012 accounts on 27 February 2013. As a result of this decision, Pescanova was subject to Art.
5bis of the law, which permits either restructuring the company for a period of four months or, in case of failure, filing
for bankruptcy.

On 12 March 2013, the company’s Chairman informed CNMV (the Spanish market supervisory authority) that significant
differences may exist between the debt on the company’s books and the debt actually due.

Pescanova’s listing will probably remain suspended until the company’s 2012 accounts have been validated.

BDO, the company’s registered auditor for more than 10 years, has been appointed by the CNMV to perform a detailed
analysis of the company’s accounts and submit a report on Pescanova’s position by the beginning of April. An extraordinary
Board of Directors meeting will need to be convened in order to review BDO’s report and examine and validate the new
version of the 2012 accounts.

* important Spanish company in the brewing industry and in the fuel distribution in Spain that holds 6.2% in Pescanova
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The uncertainty about the company’s financial position, the announced divergences between the actual debt and the
recognised debt which could be significant, the establishment of the procedure under Article 5bis of the Spanish
bankruptcy law setting a maximum period of four months to remedy the situation, the differences of opinion on
Pescanova’s Board of Directors about the measures to be taken, and the suspension of the stock’s listing led Luxempart
to record an impairment corresponding to a clearing of the holding and a sharp value reduction on the convertible
bonds with an impact on consolidated profit of € 48.22 million. The impact on convertible bonds was able to be
reduced by € 4 million following a disposal on 7 March 2013 for € 5 million in face value.

Acto Capital

Luxempart, through its venture capital investment company Luxempart Capital Partners acquired 41% of the venture
capital mutual funds (FCPR) Acto and Acto Capital II, held by Groupama. The Acto and Acto Capital II funds include a
total of 12 investments, with a unit amount of € 5-15 million, in French companies of the health, tourism, auditing,
and energy efficiency sectors.

Octopode

Luxempart has acquired a minority stake in Octopode, a company active in the distribution of outdoor vacation rentals.

Mirato

Luxempart has acquired a 16% holding in Mirato, an Italian company active in the manufacture, production, and
distribution of cosmetics. This acquisition of a minority holding will be managed by a local team.

Note 29 - Remuneration of the registered auditor

The following table presents the registered auditor’s remuneration.

(Figures in €) 2012 2011

Audit of statutory and consolidated financial statements 124,863 95,350

Other audit services – 7,000

Total 124,863 102,350

Audit fees include the review of the interim financial statements as at 30 June and the review of the financial statements
as at 31 December. They are included in “Other operating expenses”.
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Management report on the annual accounts
as at 31 December 2012

Luxempart ended financial year 2012 with a corporate profit of € 47.95 million compared with € 63.28 million at the
end of 2011.

In 2011, Luxempart’s merger with Audiolux generated a merger surplus of € 57.42 million representing the share of
accumulated, undistributed profits (since 1989) in Audiolux’s reserves.

In 2012, Luxempart sold its participation in Utopia and Paul Wurth and realised significant gains.

The 2012 financial year was marked by the following events:

UTOPIA

Luxempart sold its 55% participation in Utopia SA to a Luxembourg consortium made up of Utopia Management and
Compagnie Luxembourgeoise de Navigation (CLdN). For 18 years, Luxempart actively participated in the Utopia group’s
international expansion. With its financial support and business expertise through its presence in the company’s decision-
making bodies and its proximity with the management, Luxempart secured its role as professional shareholder in the
group’s expansion. Luxempart was able to contribute to maintaining a body of Luxembourg shareholders alongside
the management with which it had managed to develop a relationship of trust.

PAUL WURTH

In July 2012, Luxempart sold its 10.9% investment in Paul Wurth S.A to the German industrial group SMS Group for
€ 56 million. Luxempart had been a shareholder of Paul Wurth since 1988.

This sale, which was carried out free of any guarantee, is complementary to the parallel acquisition by SMS Group of
the shares held by ArcelorMittal (48.1%). The Luxembourg shareholders SNCI, BCEE, and the State retain 41% of the
capital of Paul Wurth S.A.

PESCANOVA

In February 2012, Luxempart subscribed to a convertible bond issue by Spanish company Pescanova for € 17 million.

In July 2012, Luxempart participated in a Pescanova capital increase for around € 9 million. The investment in Pescanova’s
capital was thus increased from 5.1% to 5.8%. This capital increase was intended to strengthen the group’s own
funds and reduce its dependence on banks.

As a reminder, in July 2011, Luxempart acquired a 5.1% holding in Pescanova for approximately € 30 million. The
company covers the entire value-creation chain, from fishing and aquaculture to marketing of seafood products.

Since February 2013, Pescanova’s position has strongly and unexpectedly deteriorated (see “Significant events after
the closing date”).

INITIATIVE POUR LA SANTÉ DOMICILE (IP Santé Domicile)

Luxempart acquired a holding in the French company Initiative Pour la Santé Domicile alongside the private equity fund
ActoCapital. This € 9.4 million investment was made through a dedicated vehicle called Actoline IV (50% in equities
and 50% in convertible bonds).
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IPS Santé Domicile provides equipment to patients whose illness requires home treatment and trains them on the use
of these devices.

IP Santé Domicile engages in its activity throughout France (44 branches) with three focuses: (i) home respiratory
assistance, (ii) home drip, nutrition, and insulin therapy, and (iii) home support services.

POWEO DIRECT ENERGIE

The merger between Poweo et Direct Energie completed in July 2012 gave birth to the first French multi-energy
alternative operator with a portfolio of more than 1 million clients. The financial agreement reached with the operator
of the ERDF power system on the routing expenses strengthened the new group’s financial position through an
exceptional injection of more than € 50 million in 2012 and recurring injections by 2015. Poweo Direct Energie has
gained new momentum and is in the process of realising synergies resulting from the merger. Its evolution will depend
on the liberalisation of the French energy market.

OTHER OPERATIONS

Luxempart sold the securities held in its stock portfolios and slightly strengthened its position in Foyer S.A. and
RTL Group.

Allocation of profit

The profit for the financial year after taxes is € 47,946,647. Taking the retained profit of € 20,095,651 into account,
the sum of € 68,042,298 is available to the General Meeting.

The following allocation is proposed:

To the shareholders, as a dividend

(23,955,084 - 998,788 = 22,956,296 shares x € 0.8252) € 18,943,535

Transfer of the wealth tax charged for financial year 2006
from “Reserve for wealth tax charged” €     -525,000

Transfer of the amount deducted from the wealth tax charged
for financial year 2006 to “Other reserves” €     525,000

Allocation to “other reserves” € 28,098,763

To retained earnings € 21,000,000

Total €   68,042,298

Your Board proposes the payment of a dividend of:

€ 0.8252 gross per share, (2011: € 0.7502 gross per share

i.e. € 0.7014 net per share, after 15% withholding tax.
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This proposal represents an increase of approximately 10% compared with the previous financial year’s dividend.

The payment terms of the dividend will be communicated during the Ordinary Annual General Meeting of 29
April 2013.

Own shares

During the first half of 2012, Luxempart acquired, during off-market transactions, 127,500 own shares for a total
amount of € 2.87 million.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company holds 998,788 own shares (4.2% of capital) for an acquisition value of
€ 19.38 million.

Significant events after the closing date of the annual accounts

Change in the position in Pescanova

Following a sudden, unexplained need for cash at the beginning of the year, putting the company’s viability into
question, Pescanova’s Board of Directors, on the initiative of representatives of Luxempart and the Damm* Group
refused to approve the 2012 accounts on 27 February 2013. As a result of this decision, Pescanova was subject to Art.
5bis of the law, which permits either restructuring the company for a period of four months or, in case of failure, filing
for bankruptcy.

On 12 March 2013, the company’s Chairman informed CNMV (the Spanish market supervisory authority) that significant
differences may exist between the debt on the company’s books and the debt actually due.

Pescanova’s listing will probably remain suspended until the company’s 2012 accounts have been validated.

BDO, the company’s reviewer for more than 10 years, has been mandated by the CNMV to perform a detailed analysis
of the company’s accounts and submit a report on Pescanova’s position by the beginning of April. An extraordinary
Board of Directors meeting will need to be convened in order to review BDO’s report and examine and validate the new
version of the 2012 accounts.

The uncertainty about the company’s financial position, the announced divergences between the actual debt and the
recognised debt which could be significant, the establishment of the procedure under Article 5bis of the Spanish
bankruptcy law setting a maximum period of four months to remedy the situation, the differences of opinion on
Pescanova’s Board of Directors about the measures to be taken, and the suspension of the stock’s listing led Luxempart
to record an impairment corresponding to a clearing of the holding and a sharp value reduction on the convertible
bonds with an impact on consolidated profit of € 48.22 million. The impact on convertible bonds was able to be
reduced by € 4 million following a disposal on 7 March 2013 for € 5 million in face value.

* important Spanish company in the brewing industry and in fuel distribution in Spain that holds 6.2% in Pescanova
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RTL Group

The Bertelsmann group has announced its intention to reduce its current holding in RTL Group from 92.3% to around
75.0%, which will allow it to have cash to finance new acquisitions while keeping a qualified majority in RTL Group
and increasing the stock’s liquidity.

In addition, RTL Group’s Board of Directors announced the payment of a dividend of € 10.50 per share (€ 5.10 of
ordinary dividend and € 5.40 of extraordinary dividend).

Financial policy of the Company

In 2012, the European financial markets were characterised by recurring tensions on debts of the southern countries.
Political and technical measures were implemented in order to thwart them and keep the eurozone going, against the
backdrop of significant deterioration of growth.

Starting from fourth quarter 2011, the markets have benefited from the new political governance in Italy as well as the
effects of the ECB’s measures under the new direction of Mr Draghi. The ECB’s measures to reduce interest rates and
make medium-term financing available to banks (LTRO), initiated at the end of 2011 and repeated in early 2012,
allowed “at risk” markets to continue in first quarter 2012 on a positive course for the sovereign risk markets, private
credit, and equity markets.

However, at the end of March 2012, the environment greatly deteriorated. Growth prospects in the developed world,
especially in Europe, were revised downward as a result of the effects of austerity but also the price of oil approaching
its 2008 highs. The political calendar (elections in Greece and France) weighed on the market, although the results
were ultimately accepted rather well. A new step in managing the European crisis was taken during the European
summit of great importance held in late June 2012. During this summit, the following points were addressed:

• The “growth” component, dear to France;

• The follow-up to the Greek plan;

• The establishment of a new plan in order to recapitalise Spanish banks in difficulty;

• The fiscal union pact, unified bank supervision, and the European Stability Mechanism (ESM).

The end of the first half of the year saw a rebound of “at risk” markets, accentuated by the ECB’s strong initiatives to
anchor the sustainability of the euro in the markets and measures implicitly validated by the German Constitutional
Court, approving the ratification of the ESM pact, the successor of the European Financial Stability Facility (EFSF). The
Outright Monetary Transactions (OMT) mechanism, which can be activated in the eurozone at the request of threatened
countries, based on negotiated conditions, finally convinced the bond markets. Over the last quarter, the result was a
widespread decrease in swap interest rates, margins on corporate bonds, including for financial issuers, and margins
on sovereign borrowings of countries of the South, with institutional players worrying more and more about insufficient
returns on their portfolio. The liberalisation of the sums pledged to Greece under conditions contributed to this
standardisation movement.

Over the year, equities experienced significant volatility, highly correlated to the levels of pressure in the eurozone. The
good performance until late March was virtually eliminated in the second half of 2012 before a very strong rebound in
third quarter 2012. The last quarter was very positive thanks to the decline in risk aversion and the decrease in interest
rates. This particularly benefited financial securities. The US market welcomed the re-election of Barack Obama as well
as the resolution, admittedly temporary, of the year-end deadline for the fiscal cliff.
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The Company’s major risk is the exposure of its financial assets to market risk. The policy for managing this risk is
established and controlled by the Management Committee, the Board of Directors, and the Audit Committee.

The Company’s investments are mainly in companies listed on the stock exchange (Luxembourg Stock Exchange,
Brussels Stock Exchange, and Paris Stock Exchange).

Management of market risk

Market risk applies to the loss in value of assets invested through the stock exchange in equity or mutual fund units.
These securities are listed on the stock exchange and are thus subject to the variations and risks inherent in the
financial markets. It is possible that at a given moment, the value of all or some of these securities will be less than the
most recently established book value.

Management of interest rate risk

Management of interest rate risk involves hedging (fully or partially) the fluctuation of interest rates on debt with a
fixed interest rate according to its own policy adopted by the Board of Directors of each entity based on its needs.

The average duration of the placement of fixed-term deposits is 30 days, and the average rate is 0.56%. As of this
date, the average rate is 0.12%.

Management of foreign exchange risk

The Company invests mainly in positions in the Company’s functional currency (EUR). There is no significant exposure
to foreign exchange risk.

Management of credit risk

Credit risk involves the risk that contracted third parties will not meet their commitments towards the Company during
transactions with it.

Each holding is responsible for managing credit risk according to the specific terms most appropriate for the situation.

Management of liquidity risk

As at 31 December 2012, Luxempart has no financial debts and has a high level of liquidity. The liquidity default risk
is low.

Research and development

Luxempart has no activity in the field of research and development.

Outlook

Luxempart’s main holdings have announced the payment of an increased dividend in relation to the previous financial
year.
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Pescanova’s situation could still have an additional negative impact on the 2013 accounts of around € 4 million, in
case of a total value correction of the residual value of the convertible bonds, with the loss of around € 1 million on the
disposal of a portion of the convertible bonds on 7 March 2013 having already been incorporated into the 2012
accounts, with this loss originating in financial year 2012.

Luxempart maintains the right to buy back own shares on the Luxembourg regulated market. The total number of
shares bought back per financial year should not exceed 100,000.

Legal notice

Responsibility of the Board of Directors

The responsibility of the Board of Directors is determined by law. In this regard, the Board is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the annual accounts in accordance with the European directives, as transposed by
Luxembourg law as ordered by the European regulations. The Board considers that it has fully complied with these
obligations.

Declaration by responsible persons

In accordance with the law of 11 January 2008 relating to transparency obligations regarding information about
issuers whose securities are admitted for trading on a regulated market, we declare that to our knowledge, the
financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards, provide a true and fair view of
the assets and liabilities, financial position, and profits and losses of the Company and that the management report
faithfully presents the growth, profits, and position of the Company.

Law of 19 December 2002

The information required by the Law of 19 December 2002 (Article 68bis), updated version of 17 December 2010, is
found in the corporate governance charter, a version of which is available on the Company’s website: www.luxempart.lu.

Information in application of the law of 19 May 2006 regarding takeover bids

Luxempart’s share capital amounts to € 59,887,710 represented by 23,955,084 fully paid-up common shares without
any designation of a nominal value. There are no other share categories or options or pre-emptive rights entitling
holders to the issuance of shares of another category that could have a dilutive effect on the number of shares issued.
The issued shares all wear the same rights both with regard to their right to vote at ordinary and extraordinary general
meetings and the dividend voted on by shareholders at general meetings. Note that there are no restrictions on the
transfer of securities or special control rights for certain holders of these securities. No agreement between shareholders
able to lead to restrictions on the transfer of securities or voting rights has been entered into.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Foyer Finance, a financial holding company not
listed on the stock exchange, which constitutes the largest group of companies to which the Company belongs, holds
10,434,240 shares of the Company out of a total of 23,955,084 issued shares, i.e., 43.56%.

Within Luxempart, there is a Stock Option Plan implemented for members of the Management Committee. Each year,
the Company freely decides whether there is cause to allocate option rights or not. The granting of options is subject
to a flat-rate entry taxation model. Option rights, where applicable, are allocated annually based on the length of
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service and the achievement of performance objectives of each person. The option right is subject to a lock-in period
of three years and must be exercised within a period of ten years from the granting of the option right. The Stock
Option Plan of members of the Management Committee is supplied with own shares held in the portfolio in such a
way that there is no creation of new dilutive shares for shareholders.

Members of Luxempart’s Board of Directors are appointed by the Annual General Meeting upon recommendation by
the Board and after receiving the opinion of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. They are appointed for a
maximum term of six years. Normally, the term of office of Luxempart’s directors is three years, and the expiry dates are
spread out so that one third of the terms of office are renewed each year. Their term of office is renewable. In principle,
the term of office as director ends at the close of the Annual General Meeting that chooses the replacement.

The Annual General Meeting may revoke the directors at any time.

In the event that the office of a director is vacant, the Board of Directors may choose a replacement in compliance with
the rules governing the appointment of directors. At the next Annual General Meeting, the shareholders decide on the
final appointment, in principle for the remaining period of the term of office of the replaced director.

The Board of Directors, a body responsible for Luxempart’s management, has decision-making powers on all matters
and can undertake all activities necessary or useful for meeting the company’s corporate purpose, with the exception
of powers that the law or the Articles of Association grant expressly to the Annual General Meeting. The responsibility
of this body is to ensure the long-term success of the company and its business activities, in the interest of the
shareholders and by considering the interests of other stakeholders of the community in which the Company operates.
The primary responsibility of the Board of Directors lies in the strategic management of the Company and the control
over its business activities.

An Extraordinary General Meeting must be convened to deliberate on any modification of the bylaws as well as any
increase or decrease in the share capital, unless the shareholders previously authorised the Board to increase the share
capital under specific conditions, which is the case for Luxempart, whose authorised capital amounts to € 90,000,000.
Following a decision taken by the Extraordinary General Meeting of 30 April 2012, the Board of Directors is authorised
to carry out, under the conditions stipulated by article 5 of the bylaws, one or more capital increases in order to bring
it up to € 90,000,000; this authorisation expires on 30 April 2017.

Also note that there is no agreement to which Luxempart would be party that would be substantially amended or even
terminated in the event that a takeover bid is implemented. Similarly, no agreement has been entered into between
the Company and the members of its Board of Directors or its personnel providing for compensation in case of
resignation, dismissal without valid reason, or if their employment was terminated because of a takeover bid.

Alain HUBERTY François TESCH
Director Managing Director

Leudelange, 28 March 2013
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To the shareholders of
Luxempart S.A.
12 rue Léon Laval
L-3372 Leudelange

Report on the annual accounts

Following our appointment by the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders dated 30 April 2012, we have audited
the accompanying annual accounts of Luxempart, which comprised the balance sheet as at 31 December 2012, and
the profit and loss statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors for the annual accounts

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual accounts, in accordance
with the legal and regulatory obligations relating to the preparation and presentation of annual accounts in force in
Luxembourg and for such related internal control as necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibility of the registered auditor

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual accounts based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing as adopted for Luxembourg by the “Commission de Surveillance
du Secteur Financier”. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the annual accounts are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the annual
accounts. The procedures selected depend on the registered auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the annual accounts, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers the internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the annual accounts
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effective operation of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the annual accounts.

We believe that the audit evidence that we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Registered auditor’s report
as at 31 December 2012
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Opinion

In our opinion, the annual accounts give a true and fair view of the wealth, the financial position of Luxempart as at 31
December 2012, and of its profits for the financial year then ended, in accordance with the legal and regulatory
obligations relating to the preparation and presentation of annual accounts in force in Luxembourg.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The management report, which is the responsibility of the Board of Directors, is consistent with the annual accounts.

The statement of corporate governance as published on the Company’s website www.luxempart.lu, to which the
management report refers, is the responsibility of the Board of Directors. As at the date of this report, this statement
is consistent with the annual accounts and includes the required disclosures in accordance with the legal provisions
relating to the statement of corporate governance.

For Deloitte Audit, registered auditing firm

Christiane Chadoeuf, registered auditor
Partner

28 March 2013
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Balance sheet
as at 31 December 2012

Assets

(expressed in €) Notes 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets 3(b), 4

Concessions, patents, licences, trademarks,
and similar rights 6,601 10,373

Tangible fixed assets 3(b), 4

Other fixtures and fittings, tools, and equipment 70,234 42,696

Financial assets 3(c), (d), 5

Shares from related companies 560,473,838 476,096,933

Receivables on related companies 4,695,163 2,000,000

Shares in companies with which the Company
is linked by virtue of participating interest 38,572,953 39,823,063

Receivables on companies with which the Company
is linked by virtue of participating interest 5 3,767,073 3,635,657

Securities held as fixed assets 5 178,059,962 217,623,494

Own shares 7 19,377,728 16,505,928

Total fixed assets 805,023,552 755,738,144

Current assets 3(d), 6

Trade debtors 496,229 132,280

due and payable within one year 496,229 132,280

Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings 26,129 26,129

due and payable within one year 26,129 26,129

Other debtors 4,756,590 4,299,851

due and payable within one year 4,756,590 4,299,851

Other transferable securities 29,523,391 26,649,055

Cash at bank and in hand 123,108,771 147,255,617

Total current assets 157,911,110 178,362,933

Total assets 962,934,662 934,101,077

The notes appearing in the appendix are an integral part of these annual accounts.
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Balance sheet
as at 31 December 2012

Liabilities

(expressed in €) Notes 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Capital and reserves 7

Subscribed capital 59,887,710 59,887,710

Share premium and equivalents 66,944,818 66,944,818

Reserves

Legal reserve 8 5,988,772 5,984,483

Reserve for own shares 19,377,727 16,505,928

“Wealth tax deduction” reserve 9 2,309,840 2,309,840

Other reserves 505,808,972 442,726,365

Profit brought forward 20,095,651 40,000,000

Profit for financial year 47,946,647 63,276,159

Untaxed capital gains 10 15,698,709 15,698,709

Total capital and reserves 744,058,845 713,334,012

Provisions

Provision for pensions and similar obligations 131,801 131,801

Provisions for taxation 3,978,577 4,355,422

Total provisions 4,110,378 4,487,223

Non-subordinated creditors 3(f), 6

Debts on purchases and delivery of services 691,190 1,107,058

due and payable within one year 691,190 1,107,058

Amounts owed to affiliated companies 213,799,000 213,849,000

due and payable within one year – 50,000

due and payable after more than one year 213,799,000 213,799,000

Amounts owed to undertakings with which
the company is linked by virtue of participating interest – 1,101,375

due and payable within one year – 1,101,375

Tax and social security debts 214,798 222,409

Tax debts 182,245 192,797

Social security debts 32,553 29,611

Other creditors 60,451 –

due and payable within one year 60,451 –

Total current liabilities 214,765,438 216,279,842

Total liabilities 962,934,662 934,101,077

The notes appearing in the appendix are an integral part of these annual accounts.
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Profit and loss account
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012

(expressed in €) Notes 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Charges

Staff costs 11 1,696,465 1,132,703

Wages and salaries 1,618,757 1,057,028

Social security costs 65,856 64,031

Other social security costs 11,852 11,645

Value adjustments 19,428 18,214

In respect of formation expenses and
tangible and intangible assets 19,428 18,214

Other operating charges 12 2,326,363 3,684,559

Value adjustments and fair value adjustments
in respect of financial assets 5 - 13 60,712,090 19,099,292

Capital losses on disposal of securities 2,862,812 2,895,952

Interest and financial charges 560,435 759,702

Other taxes not shown under the above items 14 358,760 750,258

Profit for financial year 47,946,647 63,276,159

Total charges 116,482,999 91,616,838

Income

Other operating income 801,902 529,317

Income from financial assets 15 106,812,436 28,587,521

Income from current financial assets 3,945,378 429,422

Other interests and other financial income 4,911,534 4,411,174

Concerning affiliated undertakings 18,065 6,312

Other interest payable and income 4,893,469 4,404,861

Extraordinary income – 57,416,933

Income tax adjustments 14 11,750 242,472

Total income 116,482,999 91,616,838

The notes appearing in the appendix are an integral part of these annual accounts.
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Appendix to the annual accounts
as at 31 December 2012

1. General information

Luxempart Société Anonyme (hereinafter “the Company” or “Luxempart”) was founded on 25 April 1988 under the
name BIL Participations. The Annual General Meeting of 15 September 1992 decided to change the Company’s name
to Luxempart Société Anonyme. The Company is registered on the trade and companies register of Luxembourg under
no. B27846. The Company was created for an unlimited term.

The Company’s registered office is established at 12, rue Léon Laval in Leudelange. The Company is listed on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

The Company’s financial year begins on 1 January and closes on 31 December of each year.

The Company’s purpose is particularly acquisition of holdings, in whatever form, in other companies as well as
management, control, and development of these holdings.

2. Presentation of the accounts

The Company presents consolidated annual accounts and a consolidated management report, which are available the
Company’s headquarters, on the basis of the legal and regulatory provisions established by Luxembourg law.

3. Summary of main accounting policies

The annual accounts are prepared in accordance with Luxembourg’s legal and regulatory provisions and the generally
accepted accounting practices.

The main accounting rules adopted by the Company are as follows:

(a) Conversion of items denominated in foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities, expressed in foreign currencies, are converted to euros (€) at the exchange rates in
force as at the closing date.

Transactions of the financial year, expressed in foreign currencies, are converted to euros (€) at the exchange rates in
force as at the transaction date.

Only unrealised foreign exchange losses are recorded in the profit and loss account. Exchange gains are recorded in the
profit and loss account at the time of their realisation.

(b) Intangible and tangible fixed assets

Intangible and tangible fixed assets are valued at the historical acquisition price. The acquisition price is obtained by
adding related expenses to the purchase price.
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Intangible and tangible fixed assets whose use is limited over time are depreciated on a straight-line basis according to
the following rates:

Depreciated asset Rate

Computer equipment and software 33.33%

Rolling stock 20%

Furniture and fixtures 10%

(c) Long-term investments

Shares in related companies

“Related company” refers to a holding in which Luxempart has exclusive control, holding decision-making power on
both financial and operational levels. In principle, this control is the consequence of directly holding more than 50% of
the voting rights.

Shares in related companies are valued at the historical acquisition price, which includes related expenses.

In case of permanent impairment, the shares in the related companies are the subject of value adjustments in order to
give them the lower value that should be attributed to them as at the balance sheet’s closing date. These value
adjustments are not maintained when the reasons that motivated them have ceased to exist.

Shares in companies with which the Company is linked by virtue of participating interest

“Company with which the Company is linked by virtue of participating interest” refers to a company in which Luxempart
exercises significant influence through its participation in the political, financial, and operational decisions of the held
company. Significant influence is assumed when Luxempart holds 20% or more of the voting rights. “Company with
which the Company is linked by virtue of participating interest “ also refers to companies under joint control.

Shares in companies with which the Company is linked by virtue of participating interest are valued at the historical
acquisition price, which includes related expenses.

In case of permanent impairment, shares in companies with which the Company is linked by virtue of participating
interest undergo of value adjustments in order to give them the lower value that should be attributed to them as at the
balance sheet’s closing date. These value adjustments are not maintained when the reasons that motivated them have
ceased to exist.

Securities held as fixed assets

“Securities held as fixed assets” refer to a holding in which Luxempart does not exercise significant influence. This lack
of significant influence is assumed if Luxempart does not directly or indirectly hold more than 20% of the voting rights.

Securities held as fixed assets are valued at the historical acquisition price, which includes related expenses.

In case of permanent impairment, securities held as fixed assets undergo value adjustments in order to give them the
lower value that should be attributed to them as at the balance sheet’s closing date. These value adjustments are not
maintained when the reasons that motivated them have ceased to exist.
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(d) Receivables

Receivables are recorded on the balance sheet at the lower of their nominal value and their likely realisable value. They
undergo value adjustments when their recovery is partially or fully compromised.

These value adjustments are not maintained when the reasons that motivated their establishment have ceased to exist.

(e) Securities

Securities are assets acquired mainly with a view to be sold in the short term and presenting a profit-taking profile in
the short term.

Value adjustments corresponding to the negative difference between the realisable value and the acquisition cost are
not maintained when the reasons that motivated them have ceased to exist.

(f) Debts

Debts are recorded in liabilities at their redemption value.

(g) Value adjustments

Value adjustments are deducted directly from the affected asset.

4. Intangible and tangible fixed assets

Movements in intangible and tangible fixed assets that occurred during the financial year can be summarised as
follows:

IT equipment,
rolling stock, furniture

(expressed in €) Software and fixtures

Cost as at 01/01/2012 25,624 77,994

Additions of financial year – 43,194

Disposals of financial year – -1,683

Cost as at 31/12/2012 25,624 119,504

Accumulated amortisation as at 01/01/2012 -15,250 -35,298

Amortisation for financial year -3,772 -15,656

Reversal of value adjustments – 1,683

Accumulated amortisation as at 31/12/2012 -19,022 -49,271

Net book value as at 31/12/2012 6,601 70,234

Net book value as at 31/12/2011 10,373 42,696
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5. Financial assets

(a) Movements in financial assets that occurred during the financial year can be summarised as follows:

Shares in Receivables
companies on companies
with which with which

Receivables the company is the company is
Shares from linked by virtue linked by virtue Securities

in related related  of participating of participating held as
(expressed in €) companies companies  interest interest fixed assets

Cost as at 01/01/2012 491,599,191 2,000,000 40,075,499 3,635,657 262,750,860

Additions of financial year 97,294,262 4,695,163 4,725,500 131,416 30,107,334

Disposals of financial year     -15,348,231 2,000,000        -2,101,657        – -40,371,305

Cost value as at 31/12/2012 573,545,222 4,695,163 42,699,342 3,767,073 252,486,890

Value adjustments
accumulated as at 01/01/2012 -15,502,258 – -252,435 – -45,127,367

Value adjustments
of the year – – 3,873,953 – 43,940,219

Reversal of value
adjustments of the year 2,430,874 –            – – 14,640,658

Value adjustments
accumulated as at 31/12/2012 -13,071,384 – -4,126,388 – -74,426,928

Net value as at 31/12/2012 560,473,838 4,695,163 38,572,953 3,767,073 178,059,962

Net book value as at 31/12/2011 476,096,933 2,000,000 39,823,063 3,635,657 217,623,494

The item “Share in related companies” amounts to, as at 31 December 2012, € 560,473,838 (2011: € 476,096,933). This
change is mainly due to:

• a capital increase in Luxempart Capital Partners Sicar S.A.,

• the acquisition of a Actoline IV holding,

• the disposal of the holding in Utopia.

Receivables from related companies amount to € 4,695,163 as at 31 December 2012 (2011: € 2,000,000). This item is
made up of a shareholder loan to Actoline IV.

The item “Share in companies with which the company is linked by virtue of participating interest” amounts to, as at
31 December 2012, € 38,572,953 (2011: € 39,823,063). The change is due to a reduction and an increase in capital in
Indufin Capital Partners. As at 31 December 2012, Luxempart has recognised a value adjustment on its DS Care holding for
€ 3,873,953.

Receivables on companies with which the company is linked by virtue of participating interest amounts to, as at 31 December
2012, € 3,767,073 (2011: € 3,635,657). This item is made up of a shareholder loan to DS Care and a shareholder loan to
Quip Holding.
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The item “Securities held as fixed assets” amounts to, as at 31 December 2012, € 178,059,962 (2011: € 217,623,494).
This change is due to:

• acquisitions for € 30,107,334 (mainly a subscription to Pescanova convertible bonds for € 17,000,000 and a capital
increase in Pescanova for € 9,170,218)

• disposals for € 40,371,305 (disposal of Paul Wurth and the stock portfolio for € 36,466,981)

• value adjustments on Pescanova shares and bonds for € 43,940,218

• reversal of value adjustments for € 4,888,930

• reversal of value adjustments on disposals for € 9,751,728

(b) Companies in which Luxempart has a holding greater than 20%:

Shareholders’ equity Profit of
Name of Registered % of  (excluding profit financial
the company office holding  of financial year) year

Luxempart Capital 12, Rue Léon Laval
100.00 121,856,280 874,479Partners S.A. Sicar L-3372 Leudelange

Indufin Capital 12, Rue Léon Laval
49.99 77,916,231 7,873,363Partners S.A. Sicar L-3372 Leudelange

Indufin S.A.
Interlevenlaan, 15/B1

40.00 116,059 13,466B-3001 Leuven / Haasrode

Quip Holding GmbH
Thomas Edison Str. 5-7

51.00 5,974,188 -1,190,950D-52499 Baesweiler

Ds Care S.A.
14, Rue du Marché aux Herbes

45.05 15,032,634 -442,983L-1728 Luxembourg

Luxempart Ireland Ltd
1st floor, Riverview House,

100.00 213,967,612 -9,66121-23 City Quay, Dublin 2 Ireland

Luxempart Invest S.à r.l.
12, Rue Léon Laval

100.00 216,990,934 10,725,122L-3372 Leudelange

Algebra GmbH
Steinstraße 27

88.00 132,249 275D- 40210 Düsseldorf

Pescahold S.A.
12, Rue Léon Laval

100.00 -5,811 36,811L-3372 Leudelange

Actoline IV SAS
148, boulevard Haussmann

65.61 7,306,763 -48,750F-75008 Paris

As part of the holdings in Quip Holding and DS Care, the company is managed jointly with other shareholders on the basis
of a contractual agreement.
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6. Receivables and debts

As at 31 December 2012:

• Trade debtors amount to € 496,229 (2011: € 132,280).

• Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings due and payable within one year amount to € 26,129 (2011: € 26,129).

• Other debtors due and payable within one year amount to € 4,756,590 (2011: € 4,299,851) and are made up of tax
receivables for € 1,495,820 (2011: € 1,372,457) and miscellaneous receivables for € 3,260,770 (2011: € 2,927,394).
The miscellaneous receivables are mainly accrued interest not collected.

• Debts on purchases and delivery of services amount to € 691,190 (2011: € 1,107,058).

• Amounts owed to affiliated companies total € 213,799,000 (2011: € 213,849,000) and are made up of a debt to
Luxempart Ireland Limited.

• Amounts owed to undertakings with which the company is linked by virtue of participating interest have been repaid
(2011: € 1,101,375).

• Tax and social security debts total € 214,798 (2011: € 222,409).

• Other creditors amount to € 60,451 (2011: € 0).

7. Capital and reserves

Shareholders’ equity movements are broken down as follows:

Share Reserve Profit
premium for Reserve Profit for Un-

Subscribed and Legal  wealth for Other brought financial taxed
(expressed in €) capital equivalents reserve reserve shares reserves forward  year gains

As at 31/12/2011 59,887,710 66,944,818 5,984,483 2,309,840 16,505,928 442,726,365 40,000,000 63,276,159 15,698,709

Allocation
of profit

- dividends -17,317,464

- allocation to the
legal reserve 4,289 -4,289

- other reserves 65,954,406 -65,954,406

- retained earnings -20,000,000 20,000,000

2012 reversal

- reserve for
own shares 2,871,799 -2,871,799

- dividends /
own shares 95,651

Profit of the year 47,946,647

As at 31/12/2012 59,887,710 66,944,818 5,988,772 2,309,840 19,377,727 505,808,972 20,095,651 47,946,647 15,698,709
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As at 31 December 2012, subscribed capital of € 59,887,710 is represented by 23,955,084 fully paid-up shares without
designation of nominal value.

During financial year 2012, the Company acquired 127,500 own shares at the average cost of € 22.52, bringing the
balance as at 31 December 2012 to 998,788 own shares. In accordance with the law, an amount equal to this value was
deducted from “Other reserves” in order to be added to the unavailable reserve.

The accounting par value of the own shares is € 2,496,970. It represents 4.17% of the subscribed capital in accordance
with Article 49-2 of the law of 10 August 1915.

The Ordinary Annual General Meeting of 30 April 2012 decided to distribute a gross ordinary dividend of € 0.7502 per
share for financial year 2011.

8. Legal reserve

From the net profit, 5% must be deducted annually to build up the reserve fund required by Luxembourg law. This deduction
ceases to be mandatory when the reserve fund reaches one-tenth of the share capital.

In 2011, Luxempart carried out a capital increase of € 42,885. The Ordinary General Meeting of 30 April 2012 decided to
increase the legal reserve by 10% of this capital increase, or € 4,289 to reach one tenth of the share capital.

The legal reserve may not be distributed to the shareholders except in case of dissolution of the Company.

9. “Wealth tax deduction” reserve

In accordance with the tax laws, the Company reduced the wealth tax expense. The Company decided to allocate an
amount corresponding to five times the amount of the wealth tax deduction to a restricted reserve. The period of unavailability
of this reserve is five years from the year following that of the set-off of the wealth tax. The change in 2011 resulted from
the merger and the € 1,688,840 takeover of Audiolux.

Year Reserve Year Reserve

2006  525,000 2009  621,000

2007  621,000 2010  621,000

2008  621,000 2011 2,309,840

2012 2,309,840
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10. Untaxed capital gains

As at 31 December 2012, this item amounts to € 15,698,709 (2011: € 15,698,709) and includes the capital gains
from disposal on untaxed securities. These capital gains, recorded in liabilities on the balance sheet, result from application
of Article 54 of the income tax law and are to be reinvested before the end of the second financial year of operation
following the financial year of the disposal. If these capital gains are not reinvested within these periods, they are to be
reversed through the profit and loss account and subject to tax.

11. Staff costs

The number of employed personnel on average during financial year 2012 amounted to 7.5 (2011: 7), represented by
the following categories:

Number of Number of
people people

Categories 2012 2011

Executives 2 2

Employees 5.5 5

Personnel costs relating to the financial year are broken down as follows:

(expressed in €) 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Wages and salaries 1,618,757 1,057,028

Social security costs 65,856 64,031

Other social security costs 11,852 11,645

1,696,465 1,132,703

Of which, pension 54,247 54,073

12. Remuneration to directors

During the financial year, Luxempart paid net fixed compensation of € 240,000 to the directors (2011: € 224,000)
and an attendance fee of € 86,800 (2011: € 70,400). These amounts are included in “Other operating charges”.
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13. Value adjustments and fair value adjustments in respect of financial assets

This item includes:

 • Capital losses generated on the sale of financial assets. During financial year 2012, Luxempart realised capital
losses of € 12,897,919 (2011: € 1,463,190).

 • Value adjustments on financial assets. As at 31 December 2012, Luxempart recorded total value adjustments of
€ 47,814,171 (2011: € 17,636,101).

These value adjustments are broken down for € 3,873,953 on DS Care and for € 43,940,218 on Pescanova.

14. Taxes

The Company is fully taxable on its trade income at an effective rate of 29.34%. It is also subject to a wealth tax of
0.5% calculated on the basis of net assets at the beginning of the year. Taxes come from ordinary activities.

As at 31 December 2012, the tax expense is broken down as follows:

(expressed in €) 31/12/2012 31/12/2011

Corporate income taxes (IRC) -11,750 -183,601

Municipal business taxes (ICC) – -58,871

Wealth taxes -42,760 177,635

Other taxes 401,520 572,623

Total 347,010 507,786

15. Income from financial assets

This item consists of:

 • Dividends received from financial assets. During financial year 2012, Luxempart received € 25,546,679 (2011:
€ 22,305,763).

 • Capital gains generated on the sale of financial assets. Disposals generated a total capital gain in 2012 of € 64,194,225
(2011: € 1,289,580).

 • Reversals of value adjustments on financial assets. As at 31 December 2012, Luxempart recorded reversals of
value adjustments for € 17,071,532 (2011: € 4,992,178).
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16. Post balance sheet events

Following a sudden, unexplained need for cash at the beginning of the year, putting the company’s viability into
question, Pescanova’s Board of Directors, on the initiative of representatives of Luxempart and the Damm* Group
refused to approve the 2012 accounts on 27 February 2013. As a result of this decision, Pescanova was subject to Art.
5bis of the law, which permits either restructuring the company for a period of four months or, in case of failure, filing
for bankruptcy.

On 12 March 2013, the company’s Chairman informed CNMV (the Spanish market supervisory authority) that significant
differences may exist between the debt on the company’s books and the debt actually due.

Pescanova’s listing will probably remain suspended until the company’s 2012 accounts have been validated.

BDO, the company’s reviewer for more than 10 years, has been mandated by the CNMV to perform a detailed analysis
of the company’s accounts and submit a report on Pescanova’s position by the beginning of April. An extraordinary
Board of Directors meeting will need to be convened in order to review BDO’s report and examine and validate the new
version of the 2012 accounts.

The uncertainty about the company’s financial position, the announced divergences between the actual debt and the
recognised debt which could be significant, the establishment of the procedure under Article 5bis of the Spanish
bankruptcy law setting a maximum period of four months to remedy the situation, the differences of opinion on
Pescanova’s Board of Directors about the measures to be taken, and the suspension of the stock’s listing led Luxempart
to record an impairment corresponding to a clearing of the holding and a sharp value reduction on the convertible
bonds with an impact on consolidated profit of € 48.22 million. The impact on convertible bonds was able to be
reduced by € 4 million following a disposal on 7 March 2013 for € 5 million in face value.

17. Transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties are broken down mainly as follows:

• Loan to Quip Holding for € 2,550,000.

• Loan to DS Care S.A. for € 1,217,073.

• Loan to Actoline IV for € 4,695,163.

• Loan received from Luxempart Ireland Limited for € 213,799,000.

* important Spanish company in the brewing industry and in fuel distribution in Spain that holds 6.2% in Pescanova
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Since 1992, Luxempart’s share price has shown a
compound annual growth rate of 11% (12% for its net
asset value – NAV).

At end March 2013, the Company's share price showed
a discount of approximately 33% in relation to its NAV.
During 2012, Luxempart's NAV increased by 7.4%.

Between 1st January and 31st March 2013, the NAV
increased by 2.7% while the share price grew by 2%
over the same period.

Luxempart’s dividend has seen a compound annual growth
rate of 8.9% since 1992.

For the financial year 2012, the Board of Directors proposed

a gross dividend per share of € 0.8252, i.e. a 10% increase
on the previous financial year's dividend.

Since January 2012, Luxempart’s share performance has
been slightly below that of the Lux X index (+15% vs.
+16% respectively). The Lux X has been highly influenced
by the performance of SES (+29% weighted at 22% in
the index), Reinet (+29% weighted at 21% in the index)
and KBC (+190% weighted at 11% in the index) as well
as that of ArcelorMittal (-24% weighted at 18% in the
index). Luxempart was impacted positively by strong growth
in the share price of SES and Foyer (+23%) and negatively
by the share price evolution of RTL Group (-15% after

payment of a dividend of € 10.5 including € 5.4 in
extraordinary dividends).
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Key consolidated figures
IFRS
(International Financial
Reporting Standards)

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Profit (in € millions)

Recurring profit 24.70 22.89

Profit from current and non-current assets (capital gains) (1.80) (4.71)

Share of profit from associated companies 4.22 11.29

Share of profit from non-current assets available for sale
and discontinued operations 1.48 13.84

Consolidated net profit – Company owners 28.32 43.22

Consolidated overall net profit
(including income and expenses recognised in shareholders’ equity) 51.31 32.57

Shareholders’ equity – attributable to Company owners8 864.00 832.46

Group cash position 229.09 163.61

Consolidated net assets 883.57 861.27

Key figures per share (in €)

Shareholders’ equity – attributable to Company owners
per share 36.07 34.75

Net asset per share 36.88 35.95

Net profit per share – attributable to Company owners 1.18 1.80

Overall net profit per share – attributable to Company owners
(including variations in portfolio value) 2.14 1.36
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Private Equity Funds € m 10

Long Term Investments € m 528

Net Cash Position € m 200

Private Equity € m 109

Asset Portfolio € m 34

Own Shares € m 26

Consolidated portfolio
Portfolio
breakdown
as at 20.03.2013


